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Spirax Sarco provides knowledge, service and products for the control
and efficient use of steam and other industrial fluids worldwide. Spirax
Sarco’s position as the world leader is founded on its long held strategy
of investing for growth.

The Group’s prime financial objective is to provide enhanced value

to shareholders through consistent growth in earnings and dividends
per share,

Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc final results

2004 2003 Change
Turnover £325.8m £314.1m +4%
Operating profit £51.7m £45.8m +12%
Operating profit margin 15.7% 14.6%
Profit before taxation £50.8m £44.6m +14%
Earnings per share 43.4p 38.5p +13%
Oividends per share 21.4p 20.1p +6%
Return on capitai employed 31.0% 28.3%
Net cash/{debt) £2.9m £(14.4m

s Robust organic sales growth of 8%

e Strong performance in Asia and Americas

¢ Pre-tax profit growth of 14%, despite adverse exchange movements
¢ Trading margin improved to 15.7%

» Good cash flow

¢ increase of 7% in final dividend to 15.1p
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The Group operating profit increased by 12% to a
record £51.1 million, the increase benefiting from the
non-repeat of the factory closure costs in 2003 of £1.5
million. The effect of exchange rate moverments was to
reduce the 2004 profit by £3.75 million, so we
achieved a strong underlying like for fike profitincrease.
The operating profit rmargin rose again to 15.7%
compared with 14.6% in 2003.

Continuing good cash flow eiiminated net debt during
the year and reduced the net interest charge to £0.3
million in 2004 from £1.2 miillion in 2003. The Group's
pre-tax profit rose 1o £50.8 milion, as against £44.6
million the previous year; an increase of 14%.
Amortisation of goodwill was £0.7 milion (2003: £0.7
million).

The tax charge at 34% was similar to the charge in
2003 and represents the expected normal rate.
Minority interests were 44% ahead of 2003 as & result
of strong results in India in particular and Mexico.
Earnings per share rose by 13% to 43.4p from 38.5p.
The Board is recommending a final dividend of 15.1p,
which, with the interim dividend of 6.3p per share,
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gives a total for the year of 21.4p, an increase of 6.5%.
The cost of the interim and final dividends is
£16.1million, which is covered 2.0 times by earnings. No
scrip afternative to the cash dividend is being offered.

Net capital expenditure for the year was £14.7 million
(2003: £11.9 million). We are maintaining our policy of
investment in equipment and systems for sales,
manufacturing and product development to support
our aim of long term growth.

The Group has a history of good cash generation and,
as already noted, 2004 was no exception with a strong
inflow of £17 miliion, which arose from both the good
profit and tight control of capital employed. The year
finished with net cash of £2.9 milion, having started
the year with net debt of £14.4 million.

On 4th October, we announced that we had acquired
80% of Eirdata Environmental Services, based in the
Repubiic of Ireland, for an initial consideration of €1.2
million. FEirdata provides utility services to the
pharmaceutical industry and complements our
growing steam System service business.



As previously announced, Chris Ball and | will be
retiing from the Board on 29th April and 12th May
respectively. Chris has been with Spirax Sarco virtually
all his working life. He is a natural salesman and
motivator and, after starting work in the UK Sales
company, has worked in Kenya, Korea, Japan,
Australia and Canada before returning to the UK to
take up his Board position in 1992, He has given
unstintingly of his time and enthusiasm and he has
been a significant contributor to the Group's success
over these many years, and [ thank him an behalf of the
Board and shareholders for his achievements which
have benefited the company so much.

We will be pleased to welcome Tony Scrivin as an
executive director and Gareth Bullock as a non-
executive director to the Board on 2nd May. Tony has
worked at Spirax since 1963 and has wide experience
in most areas of the business, both sales and
manufacturing, including running Spirax Sarco, Inc. in
the USA. Gareth is a director of Standard Charared
Bank and will bring & wealth of experienca not only of
financial matters generally but also specifically of Asia
and Alrica.

During my time with the Group, with the help of my
colleagues, we have built on the foundations laid down
by our predecessors a flourishing business with clear
strategies for the future. At the conclusion of the AGM
on the 12th May, | will be handing over the
Chairmanship of the Board to Mike Townsend. Mike
understands the business well and in his care | am
confident the Group will continue to prosper. Bil
Whiteley will replace Mike Townsend as Senior
Independent Director and wil chair the Remuneration
and Audit Committees.

The Group has complied with the Combined Code
throughaut 2004, with the exception of the balance an
the Board between executive and non-executive
directors. We continue to believe that this Board
structure is right for the Group and has contributed to
its long record of good results. This is covered in more
detail on pages 22 to 25.

The robust 2004 trading performance was based on
our sales and marketing philosophy of providing
excellent Knowledge, service, products and support to
customers wheraver they are. This requires well rained
and enthusiastic people right through the organisation,

and | would like to record my personal thanks and the
thanks of the whole Board for the hard work and
dedication of all our people who make the Group the
high quality business that it is,

RIOSpects

The 2005 world economic outlook appears positive,
although there are few signs of any significant
improvements in Continental Europe or the UK. The
Asian economies remain strong; the Americas have
also started well in 2005 but there must be doubts
about sustainability. Given the underlying strengths of
the Group's business and its global coverage, and
assuming ho economic shocks or major adverse
exchange movements, we expect further growth
in 2005,

T.B. Fortune, Chairman
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The two businesses have achieved their market
leading positions by developing a network of over 40
sales companies serving all the world's major industrial
economies. This network supports over 1,000 sales
and service engineers, whose task is to advise and
help an increasing number of industrial users 1o
improve the efficiency of their systems or the guality of
their and product. Both businesses serve a broad
range of industries including food, beverages.
pharmaceuticals, electronics, Dbiotechnology, ofl,
chemicals, pulp and paper, rubber, plastics, water
treatment and many others. This very broad spread of
users means that no industrial sector accounts for
more than 10% of our sales and no singie customer
accounts for more than 1% of our sales; this diversity
provides stability to our business.

Watson-Marlow Bredel has, through selective
acquisition, product development and geographical
expansion, grown rapidly to lead the world market for
peristaltic pumps. This is the fastest growing segmert
of the world pumping market. The peristaltic principle
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enables sensitive, abrasive, corrosive or valuable media
to be pumped safely quietly and without
comtamination. These attributes are required in an
increasing number of industrial and commercial
applications and the steady expansion of its product
range. in terms of flow rates and pressure bands, allows
Watson-Marlow Bredel to address a widening market.

The Spirax Sarco business has, through focused
attention an its chasen market, built its strong position

‘in the steam-using industries in both the long

established and the newly developing and thus more
dynamic economies of the world. There are also
significant parts of the product range which are
relatively recent additions and which offer further
growth potential,

Steam is a highly effective medium for the transfer of
large amounts of heat energy in a wide variety of
industrial processes, The essence of the Spirax Sarco
business is to krow and understand the customers'
steam "loop”, from the appiication of raw heat {0 water




in the hailer, through distributing the steam to the point
where it gives up its heat to the process, to recycling of
the hot condensate to the bailer. The steam system can
therefore be made to operate at maximum efficiency,
thereby giving the customer increased throughput
through their process, or lower costs, of better product
guality, or a combination of all three. The use of steam
is evolving, for example with increasing hygiene
requlations, global warming controls and deregulation
of the power generation industry; all enhance steam'’s
attraction compared with other heat transfer media.

The sales and marketing philosophies of our peristaltic
pumping and steam businesses are shared and are
founded on our detailed and Specialist technical
knowledge, both of the product itself and of its
application in detail in the end user's plant. it follows
that education and training of both our Gwn engineers
and our customers' staff is central to our success. We
run extensive training programmes and have 35
training centres worldwide dedicated 1o this objective.
The websites of Watson-Marlow Bredel (www.watson-
marlow.com} and Spirax Sarco (www.spiraxsarco.com)
provide ampte evidence of our ability to provide
significant benefits to our customers and hence long
term growth for the Group.

trading

The second half of 2004 continued the good growth
expetienced in the first half, The market background
against which we have been operating has, for the most
part, been positive. The North American economies
were buoyant despite pre-election caution in the USA,
and the South American markets followed stit. The
Continental European markets were, by contrast,
generally weak, being negatively affected by the major
aconomies of France, Germany and laly, although there
were some bright spots elsewhere. The UK continued to
be a dull market with the manufacturing base weakening
and littdle sign of any change for the better, other than
from continued government spending, particularly on
the National Health Service. The Asian economies
mostly cortinued their strong growth, with China stil
growing fast despite the government's measures to take
the heat out of the economy. '

Exchange rates have again moved against sterling based
businesses such as Spirax with aver 80% of twrnover

and operating profits earned outside the UK. Our
manufacturing base is well spread across the world but,
despite this, the transaction impact and the translation
impact together reduced operating profit by £3.75
miliory; the adverse translation effect on sales was £13
million {4%). This came from the roughly 10% devaluation
in 2004 of the US dollar and related weakness in the
South American and some Asian currencies. Also,
sterling was slightly stronger against the euro.

Turnover increased to £326 miflion from £314 milion in
2003, an increase of 4% (organic growth of 8% at
constant exchange rates). This was a robust underlying
performance in which we gained market share. The
organic growth in sales was achieved in all geographic
regions but the main gains were in Asia and the
Americas, which is 2 continuation of the trends from
2003. We continued the gradual increase in the
number of sales and service engineers. The programme
of product developments also enhanced the offering to
customers as well as challenging our cormpetitors.

The Group's operating profitincreased by 12% in 2004
from £45.8 milion in 2003 to £51.1 milion, & record
figure. The 2003 operating profit included a charge of
£1.5 mitlion for the closure of a small factory in Spain;
on the other hand, the 2004 operating profit is reached
after taking the £3.75 million adverse exchange
mavement -effect which is mentioned above. So, the
underlying operating profit increase was 16%. This
came partly from the sales increases {in the Americas,
Asia and, 1o a lesser extent, in Continental Europe ancd
the UK} and partly from active cost control, including
raw material resourcing which counteracted the steel
price increases that came through in 2004, We also
improved productivity in the Group as a whale.
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The operating profit margin increased from 14.6% in
2003 to 15.7% in 2004, a stronger increase than in the
previous two years. In October 2004, we completed
the acquisition of Eirdata Environmental Services for an
initial consideration of €1.2 milion. This is a small
company based in the Republic of Ireland providing
system and utility audiing and servicing for the
pharmaceutical industry and which will boost our
steam system service presence in both the Republic of
Ireland and the UK.

Gyl
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Turnaver in the UK domestic market grew by 2% in
2004 to £39.9 million. The UK industrial and
commercial steam using and pumping markets
remained weak, with some customers closing ar
consolidating plants. Qur sales teams focused on
areas of opportunity such as OEMS, turnkey projects,
steam system management, prefabricated units and
silicone tubing. Demand on the UK factories, which are
suppliers to our sales companies worldwide as well as
to the domestic market, was constrained as a result of
our stock reduction activities in the steam business,
but was well ahead in Watson-Marlow as a result of the
good dernand for the new pump range and expanding
tubing sales.

Operating profits in the UK were £8.7 milion, up 9%
on 2003.
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Sales to third party customers in Continental Europe
increased by 3% from £117.4 milion in 2003 to £121.2
milion in 2004; at constant exchange rates the
increase was 5%, which was achieved in spite of the
subdued state of the major continentat markets. The
major economies are not showing consistent signs of
returning to growth and probably will not do so until the
restrictive regulatory systems impacting on business
are reduced. In these difficult conditions, our sales
teams did well to increase demand through focused
sales management, concentrating on the Group-wide
sales intiatives and local actions such as targeting the
CEM, dil and petrochemicals, and pulp and paper
markats.

The sales growth in Continental Europe was refatively
widely spread. In Germany, despite the difficult
conditions, the Spirax Sarco business gained market
share. Norway and Swaden grew strongly, particutatly
through heat exchanger sales. We also made gains in
Denmark. Poiand, Portugal and Switzerand.

Hygromatik, M&M and Bredel in Europe all did well
although the Spirax Sarco ltalian sales were flat and
French'sales were only siightly up, a creditable position
in lacklustre markets. The main reductions were in the
Czech Republic, where the sales were good but below
an exceptional pre-EU accession year in 2003, ard in
Spain and Finland where the markets were difficult and
sales were down.

The factories in France and the Netherlands saw good
demand, particularly from Asia and the Americas, and
increased their profits. '

Operating profits in Continental Europe were £18.9
million in 2004 which rapresents an increase of 15% on
2003. The 2003 figure included the £1.5 million charge
for closure costs of the small Spanish factory; the profit
increase excluding this charge would have been 5%,
and, at constant exchange rates, would have been 8%.
The operating profit margin improved to 12.6% from
11.2% in 2003,
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The economies in Asia and Australasia continued their
recent growth record and trading conditions through
2004 were positive despite the high ol price and the
Chinese government's measures to slow the economy
down. Our saies companies achieved good sales and
profits growth based on both the market activity and
our own sales development actions. Third party sales
were £80.2 milion, up from £73.3 million in 2003, an
increase of 9%. The weakness of the Asian currencies
has undermined the sterling results from this part of the
world and tne sales at constant exchange were ahead
by 15%. The growth in sales was broadly spread
across the region, with China and Indfa producing the
higgest increases, and Japan also growing well, which
was the resull of strategic actions taken by the
management team. Korean sales were ahead as a

ArTIericas

2004

result of successes with sales initiatives and some
good project wins. Elsewhere, there were good sales
increases in Australia, New Zealand, Taiwan and UK
exports, paricularly to the Middle East.

Operating profit for the region was £12.2 milion, which
compares with £11.0 milion last year, an increase of
11%. The effect of the adverse exchange rate
movements (poth transaction and translation)
significantty reduced the sterling value of the profi,
which at constant exchange would have given an
increase of 23% over 2003, a strong result. The
operating profit margin in 2004 was 16.7%, more or
less unchanged from 2003, the benrefit of the cxtra
volumes having been largely offset by the acversa effect
of exchange rate movements on the gross margin.
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Turrover in the Americas increased in 2004 over 2003
by 10% at constant currency, a good increase, which
was, however, almost totally eliminated by the
weakness of the US dollar and the other Americas
currencies, so the sterling result does not reflact the
hard work and success of our companies in the year. Al
the markets in the Americas were busy, although there
are some concerns, particularly in Latin America, that
the current levels of activity might not be sustained.

Our businesses in the USA bath performed well. The
Spirax Sarco company built up sales in steam system
services, prefabricated units and exports to Latin
America, and like for like profits were well ahead. The
Watson-Marlow Bredel business produced solid
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underiying growth, and some good OEM and oroject
orders partialy compensated for the large project
orders received in 2003; the profit was adversely
affected by the weak dollar.

Canada produced a very good result and our Mexican
Jjoint venture improved sales and profits following the
management changes.

The operating profit for the Americas was £11.3
million, up 9% from £10.3 million in 2003 despite a
significant exchange hit. The operating profit margin
improved to 12.8% in 2004 from 11,7%, the increased
sales and overhead controls more than compensating
for the exchange hit on the gross margin.




balance sheet and cash flow

We finished 2004 with capital employed (net assets
excluding net cash/debt and goodwill) of £167 million,
which was virtually unchanged from a year earlier
despite the 8% underlying increase in business levels,
Total working capital continued to be closely controlled,
in particular stock values were marginally lower
representing a good improvement compared with the
increased sales which were reflected in higher debtors.
There was only a small increase in net fixed assets. The
overall return on capital employed improved again from
28% to 31% during the year, reftecting the increased
operating profit and broadly unchanged capital
employad, a pleasing outcome for the year.

Cash flow for the year was also good. The cash inflow
from operating activities rose to £63.2 milfion (Z003:
£53.4 million). Net capital expendittre increased to
£14.1 milion {2003: £11.9 milion) and taxation
payments were higher, reflecting the profit increase.
There was a small outflow of £0.8 million in respect of
acquisitions. During the year, the opening net dabt of
£14.4 miliion was eliminated due to the good trading
cash flows and we finished 2004 with a small net cash
balance of £2.9 milfion.

International Financial Reperting Standards will apply
for 2005, with comparative figures for 2004 resiated
onto the new basis. We have been working to
prepare for these changes and we are well on targst
1o meet the required timetable. The adoption of IFRS
will have some impact on the presentation of the
primary financial statements but does not change the
economics, risk profile or cash flows of the business.
The main areas affected will be share-based
payments, pensions, goodwill, R&D  and
consolidation of subsidiaries {which affects the
presentation of our minority investmen:s in Mexico
and Ingdia).

iocking ahead

The markets which are served by the Spirax Sarco
steam business are very diverse both geographically
and industrially and, although we are the leading
specialists in the world in this focused market, we still
have a relatively small market share. In addition, some
of the current trends such as greater regulation of
environmental issues, health, safety and hygiene,
increasing outsourcing and slimming down by
customers are all tending to increase demand for the
knowledge, service and support that we provide. There
are also markets, both geographical and industrial,
where we are not as strong as we could be. Al of
which means that the long term growth of the past has
the potential to continue into the future.

The Watson-Marlow Bredel peristaltic pumping
business has a high share of the focused industrial and
laboratory markets but the technology of the pumps,

tubes and hoses is advancing and our talented and
expert team of sales engineers are successfully
converting users of other pump types to the peristaltic
principle, SO the market is expanding, hence the
continuing growth prospects.

We will also continue to improve the way we organise
ourselves from a sales structure and management
point of view, as well as production and product
development. The advances in communications and IT
also open up opportunities for us to improve our
product development processes and production
efficiency, and build on the effectiveness of the global
sales organisation which is unigue to our Group and
which is in touch with the large number of end user
customers.

These opponunities, either in the form of sales and
marketing openings or improving internal efficiencies,
will allow us 1o achieve long term growth organically
and by suitable acquisitions as and when appropriate
oppartunitias arise. In the short term we are aware that
there are doubts regarding the strength of some of the
world economies as evidenced by the recent downturn
in the OECD leading indicatars.

charmans reliramant

Finally, in the Chairman's statement, Tim Fortune
confirms that he will be retiring from the Board on 12th
May after 27 years with the Group. Tim started as
Production Director in the Cheltenham operating
company. In 1983 he joined the main Board as Group
Manufacturing Director, he became Chief Executive in
1992 and then Chairman in 1998, Throughout this
time with Spirax, Tim's hallmark has been his
energetic and enthusiastic questioning of everything,
allied 1o a constant quest for improvement. He has
nurtured the Group's vision and darity of purpose.
Under his stewardship the Group has made great
strides and we thank him for the good shape in which
he Jeaves Spirax.

ey

M.LD. Steel, Chief Executive
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investing in people

At Spirax Sarco we pride ourselves an having a highly trained workfarce, Our employees are our most important
asset and we seek to ensure that we support that statement with our actions.

in the UK we operate an apprenticeship scheme which is an excellent way 10 recruit and train young people. The
company retains two thirds of its apprentices, which is double the national average retention rate.

Spirax Sarco has obtained the UK Investors in People award. This is a national standard awarded to organisations
that place the development of peopie at the heart of their business strategy. Itis based on the view that organisations
that train and develop their staif are best equipped for success.

Many of our companies offer funded further education for employees to develop their knowledge and skill base. In
the USA many employees are laking the opportunity of preparing themselves for future opportunities
by pursuing a higher level of education through an Educational Assistance Program. The plan covers technical
school training, four-year degrees at university and advanced degrees, such as MBAs.

@

in-house traning

&

apprenticeships

funded further education

&

&

oostgraduate professional development

Local and international training programmes have also been set
up to train both technical and sales people. These internal
courses provide not only the tools for the employees 1o do their
Jobs more effectively but provide a great forum for exchanging
experierices and Knowledge.

We also invest in the education of our customers by providing
training for them at their own premises, at one of our 35 training
centres worldwide, or an our website.

Our sales company in Korea has also recently opened a new

training centre to provide a wider range of courses to meet with
customer requirements,
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an employee’'s view

i joined Spirax Sarco eight years ago on an
Engineering Advanced Modern Apprenticeship
scheme. Through a sponsored training programme |
am now a qualified engineer, working in the business
development department based at the Steam Trap
Product Unit in the UK.

| chose the medern apprenticeship route because the
combinaticn of training offered me good long-term
benefits, in a practical training environment, which
colld lead straight to a permanent job,

Throughout my apprenticeship | was given a lot of
support. This gave me confidence in learning about
the many aspects of the business and how these
interrelated, something which has since proved
invaluabie,

‘Sprax Sarco has given
me the opporturities

Lo develop my key
competencies and focus
onwhatlam good at!’

After successfully completing my apprenticeship, the
Company suppaorted me through University. | studied
Engineering Product Design and Management, and
dained a BSc (Hons) degree.

Following my degree | was offered the job as assistant
marketing engineer, at the Steam Trap Product Unit. |
am now responsible for creating product
specifications, new product releases and technical
suppaort, reviewing statistics, supporting product quality
and providing training.

Spirax Sarco has. given me the opportunities to
develop my key competencies and focus on what |
am good at. What's more 1 am still learhing and hope
to continue developing my career with the Company.

Spirse-larco ingmaeriog pic
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investing in manufacturing

With major manufacturing faciiities in the UK, France, USA, ltaly and Argentina, Spirax Sarco is cormmitted to a
programme of continuous improvement in its manufacturing processes. It is essential that products are made to the
highest quality standards in an efficient and productive environment ensuring that cost targets are met.

Manufacturing costs have been reduced at the controls and metering product unit, with the recent installation of
robot spraying for the pressure reducing valves and safety valves. The robot automatically senses the product
identification on the conveyor line, selects the robotic program and the appropriate paint colour is applied, The new
paint baoths have reduced solvent emissions and improved working condidons, The booths are certified to
aperate within strict emission regulations, which means over 99% of all over-spray is contained and not emitted
to atmosphere. The water-based paint is designed to give excellent levels of adhesion and colour retention,
whilst offering good temperature resistance.

In order to meet increased demand for our safety valve business, investment has been made in a new valve test
facility. This is used to set large safety valves on air and steam as well as providing a dedicated test facility for the
development of new products.

Reduced costs and increased productivity have been achieved in the USA through investment in new machinery.

Global sourcing of raw materials, including China and india, has allowed us to take advantage of the Jower costs
in those countrigs,

%

reduced manufacturing costs

#

increased productivity

%

labour saving

recduced emissions

%

The ball valve product unit, based in Argentina, recently
underwent an expansion project to increase the factory space
by 1.220 m?. This extra space allowed the factory layout to be
modified, reducing the movement of parts and improving
efficiency.

New CNC machine tools have been installed and automatic
testing machines are to be incorporated in the assembly process.

Part of the new area is now allocated o the production of

EasiHeat heat exchanger units and engineered systems, which
will allow us 1o meet increased demand.
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engineered systems

In response to sales growth in the packaged system business, Spirax Sarco has invested in a substantial
new manufacturing and engineering facility. The well-equipped UK-based factory offers a flexible
approach to the design and fabrication of a wide range of engineered systems.

These include heat exchange packages, condensate return systems, reducing valve stations,

humidifiers and manifold units, all of which incorporate many individual Spirax Sarco products. The
units are designed to comply with international standards.

This investment has
enabled quicker
responsas to
quotation enguiries
and shorter order

lead-times.’

The new 2,000 m? factory has facilities to house a
fully integrated team including design, material
procurement and manufacturing,

The extra space and material handling

equipment will allow larger and more complex

backages to be built.

This investment has enabled quicker responses to quotation enquiries and sharter order lead-times.
This coupled with in-house control of quality and conformity to international standards from a flexible

and competent team, means there is now great potential to gain further business.

A similar production facility has also been developed at our ltalian manufacturing plant.
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investing in
product and service development

To maintain our position in the market it is important for us to invest in the development of new products and
services. Through a combination of research, development and acquisition we have added 10 our existing product
ranges. and introduced higher levels of service around the Group.

Watson-Marlow has designed an entirely new generation of pertstaltic pumps. This innovative design has enabled
production costs to be reduced and pump capabilities to be increased. Improvements in quaiity and reliability have
resulted in reduced warmanty costs. The new range has aflowed product rationalisation to take place with the benefit
of reduced lead times.

Spirax Sarco Brazil has developed a new automatic rotary strainer that incorporates a sotating helical scraper plate
for continuous cleaning of the strainer surface. The design orovides constantly high standards of filtration, reducing
the risk of product contamination. The automatic operation allows increases in productivity to be made and the
strainer complies with international heatth and safety requirernents,

The Spirax Sarco Group information centre website has been developed as a source of steam engineering expertise.
It contains technical information on our product range and distance learning material. Currently there are over 8,500
pages of information avaiiable,

Spirax Sarco has continued to introduce steam system services around the world. Each level of service provides
the customer with an appropriate level of support, from straightforward steam system audits to more
comprehensive contracts.

@

ncreasing capabilities
« innovative design
« @xacting performance
« sharing expertse

As part of an ongoing development both to grow our controls
product range and to respond better to the needs of our
customers, Spirax Sarco has developed the new SteriTrol
hygienic valve.

This is a two-port, stainless steel control valve for a wide range
of clean service applications in the pharmaceutical,
biotechnology, food, beverage and brewing industries, It is
suitable for a range of fluids including various grades of clean
steam and purified water.

Our close refationships with customers in these industries gives
us a unigque knowledge of their special requirements. This allows
us to develop products with highly marketable features, such as
the ability to open, clean and inspect valves quickly and easily.
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gas meter success

Spirax Sarca has been working closely with & major supplier of gas in SE Asia on the development of a
meter for use on natural gas for small (2,000 kg/h) boilers.

Spirax Sarco entered into discussions regarding the company's requirements at an earily stage. The
product requirement from the gas company was such that they agreed to work with us and be actively
invalved with the development of the product.

As the development had to be fast tracked we based the new product an existing technology.

We established a winning combination that used one of our existing meter bodies with our latest design
of electronics.

The release of Flowin has given us
a very good cost effective meter
for gas, as well as the basis

for & meter to measwe
compressed

air fow.'

Field trials were conducted in conjunction with the gas company during the latter part of 2003 and
early 2004, resulting in the release of the Flowin meter.

The Flowin meter provides the accuracy of flow measurement across & wide range of flowrates as
originally specified by our customer.

The product is targeted at boiler manufacturers and companies using gas fired industrial boilers.

The release of Flowin has given us a very good cost effective meter for gas, as well as the basis for a
meter to measure compressed air flow.
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investing in
marketing for sales growth

The Group's main focus continues to be the application of our products and services 1o meet the diverse needs of
the manufacturing and service industries that use steam for process and heating.

Our evaluation of the Group's overall worldwide market share within the steam market tells us that sales growth is
achievable in both our mature and developing markets. Our customers have become more demanding in alt areas
of product quality, delivery, price and afier-sales services. Our investments in manufacturing, products, services and
people are alt targeted at satisfying customer expectations, that will open up the opportunity for sales growth.

The Group has also invested in a number of worldwide market research projects all aimed at delivering the necessary
input to our overall marksting strategy for continted growth.

o geographical expansion

» increased market share from existing
Droducts

« market penetration rom new products

« focus on key industrial
segments with growth
potential

Recent market investigations covering the expanding use of clean
steam within the food processing, pharmaceuticals, electronics
and some service industries including hospitals, identified the need
to improve the quality of the end product or to reduce the
possibility of infection. Clean and pure steam systems are
becoming moare widely used in these industries and we have
identified a wide range of new products for development over the
next 12 to 24 months to meet the needs of these customers.

The launch of these products will not only demonstrate to
customers the experftise of Spirax Sarco in the design and use of
clean steam systems but will also open up the opportunity to
achieve sales growth in a market segment where public demand
for improved levels of health care will drive a wider use of clean
rmanufacturing processes.
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condensate management

The Group also investigated the condensate pumping market and identified specific needs of our
customers across Europe, Asia and the Americas resuiting in the continued development of two existing
products to meet these customer requirements.

For our Americas markets, & completely new design of pump has been developed to reduce and

simplify maintenance requirements and ta meet with customer expectations for an extended service
jife. This new pump, named Pivotrol, has been iaunched with a 3-year operational warranty.

The inroduction of these new
products will ensure Spirax Sarco
retains its giobal leadership in the
use of mechanical pumps

for the pumping of

hot condensate.

The MFP14 condensate pump has been redesigned to meet with customer expectations in Europe and
Asia for extended service life and increased capacity. Other design improvements have resuited in the
product being re-released with a 3-year operational warranty.

The introduction of these new products will ensure Spirax Sarco retains its global leadership in the use of
mechanical pumps for the pumping of hot condensate.

Other market investigations covering contro! valves, steam wraps and the oil and petrochemical

industries are being developed to provide the marketing strategies necessary for the Group to deliver
continued sales growth.
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Spirax Sarco directors

1 Tim Fertune CEng MidecohE (66) joined Spirax-
Sarco Limited in 1978 as Production Director
and was appointed to the Board in 1983. He
was appointed Group Managing Director in
1992 and Group Chief Executive in 1994, He
became Executive Chairman in April 1988,
becomittig non-executive  Chairman  in
November 1988. He is Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and the Finance
Committee. He is 8 non-executive director of
Renold pic.

2 AMarcos Mesl ACEK FCOA (89) joined Spirax

Sarcein 1972 and became Finance Director of
Spirax-Sarco  Llimited in 1978, He was
appointed to the Board in 1982 as Director -
Supply, and subsequently also assumed
responsibility for the Americas. He was
appointed Group Chief Executive in April 1998,
He is & member of the Nomination and
finance Committees and Chairman of the Risk
Management Commities.

3 Chais Bak (61) joined Spirax Sarco in 1963 and

became International Director of Spirax-Sarca
timited in 1888 having successively run the
Group's operations in South Korea, Japan,
Australia and Canada. He was appoinied 10
the Board in 1992 and is now responsible for
‘the Spirax Sarco International cperations in
Asia, Australasia and Africa. He is a member of
the Risk Management Commitiee.

4 Alm Black BA {Hons} (47) joined Spirax-Sarco

18

Limited in 1981 and has worked in the UK,
Austria and Korea and has run the Group's
operations in Belgium, Thailand and China, He
was appointed 1o the Board in April 1998 with
responsibility for Europe, excluding the UK and
italy. He is a member of the Risk Management
Commitiee,
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5 Redl Daws (42) joined Spirax-Sarco Limied in

1878 and became Product Director in 1938, He
was appointed to the Board in June 2003 as
Director - Supply and is responsibie for product
marketing, design and manufacture. He is a
member of the Risk Management Committee.




§ Finar tindh FG& (60) joined the Group as an
independent non-executive director in
January 2000. Untl his retrement in January
2005 he was a director of Smiths Gioup ple. He
is a member of the Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination Committees.

11 il Whiteley B3¢ ACKNA (56) joined the
Group as an independent non-executive
director in July 2002. He is the Chief Executive
of Rotork ple. He is a member of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees.
He is also a non-executive director of The
Roxbore Group plc.

thhsichas! Townsend M FCA (B3) joined the
Group as an independent non-executive
director in 1997. Until his retirement in 1999 he
was the Finance Director of Rolls-Royce plc.
He is Chairman of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees, a member of the
Nomination Committee and  Senior
Independent Director. He is a non-executive
director of Kennel Club Services Limited.

% Pefer Smith &GS (57) joined Spirax-Sarco Limited
in 1974, became Company Secretary in 1978
and a director of Spirax-Sarco Limited in 1988.
He was appointed Company Secretary to
Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc in 1992 and to
the Board in 1885. He is @ member of the Risk
Management Committee.

4 David Maeredith FGMA (45) joined the Group
in 1988 as Group Accountant. He was
appointed to the Board as Director - Finance
in 1992, He is also responsible for Watson-
Marlow Bredel. He is &8 member of the Finance
and Risk Management Committaes.

7 Graham Marchand CEng MachE (59) joined

Spirax Sarco in 1987 to run the Group's
Continental European sales operations and
became a director of Spirax-Sarco Limited in
1990. He was appointed to the Board in 1992
and is now responsible for the Americas, the UK
and Htalian markets and Group Marketing.
He is a member of the Risk Management
Committee.
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directors report

The directors of Spirax-Sarco Engineering pic have pleasure in presenting their report and the audited accounts for the year ended
31st December 2004.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year are expiained in the Chairman's Statement and Chief Executive’s Review on pages 2 to 9
and are set out in the profit and loss account on page 40.

DIVIDEND

An interim cash dividend of 6.3p per share (2003: 6.0p) was paid in November 2004, The directors now recommend the payment
of a final dividend of 15.1p per share (2003: 14.1p). If approved at the annual general meeting the final dividend wil be paid on 23rd
May 2005 to shareholders on the register at 22nd April 2005. The total distribution for the year will be 21.4p per share (2003: 20.1p}.

BUSINESS REVIEW _
A review of the operations of the Group in 2004 together with an indication of future prospects of the business is given on pages
2109

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Group's business is the provision of knowledge, service and products, worldwide for the control and efficient use of steam
and other industrial fiuids and for peristaltic pumping.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company as at 31st December 2004 are those listed on pages 18 and 19, Since that date it has been
announced that:-

Mr. T. B. Fortune will retire as Chairman of the Company and from the Board with effect from the corclusion of the annual general
meeting on 12th May 2005. He will be succeeded by Mr. M. Townsend.

Mr. C. 4. Ball wil retire from the Board with effect from 29th April 2005, Mr. G. Bullock has been appoinied to the Board with
effect from 2nd May 2005 as a non-executive director and Mr, A. J. Scrivin has been appointed to thé®Board as an executive
director with effect from 2nd May 2005 with the title Director - Europe. ) )

In accordance with the Company's articles of association:-

i) Messrs. G, Bullock and A. J. Scrivin will retire from office at the annual general meeting and, being eligible, the Beard is
recommending that they offer themselves for appointment. Mr. A. J. Scrivin will have & senvice contract with the Company
determinable on 12 months’ notice. Mr. G. Bullock, as a nen-executive director, will have a letter of appointment with the
Company; and

i) Messrs. M. J, D. Steel and A. D. H. Black retire and, being eligible, the Board is recommending that they offer themselvas for
re-appointment. Messrs. M. J. D. Steel and A. D, H. Black have service contracts with the Company determinable on 12
months' notice.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND REMUNERATION

The interests of the directors in the share capital of Spirax-Sarco Enginesring pic as at 31st December 2004 are set out below. The
number of shares over which directors hold options, together with their remuneration, is detailed in the Directors' Remurneration
Report on pages 30 to 37, '

Ordinary Shares of 25p each Ordinary Shares of 25p each
Benetficial Interests Non-beneficial Interests
31.12.04 31.12.03 31.12.04 31.12.03
or date of
retirement”
T. B. Fortune 67,723 67.723 424,288 424,288
M. 1. D. Steel 66,580 62,970 - 115,838
C. J. Bal 56,989 53,516 -
A. D. H. Biack 20,318 18,770 -
N. H. Daws 2,588 1,968 -
G. P. Marchand 52,525 51,805 - -
G. J. Meredith 41,820 41,300 424,288 540,226
P A, Smith 65,360 63.784 424,288 540,226
P. M. Smith* - 41,023 - .
E. Lindh - - - -
M. Townsend 28783 - 2,879 - -
W. H. Whiteiey 2,734 2,734 - -

* Mr. P M. Smith retired from the Board on 31st May 2003,

At 31st December 2004, the Spirax Sarco pension funds held 424,288 shares in the Company. Messrs, T. B. Fortune,
L. J. Meredith and P. A. Smith are trustees of these funds.
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There have been no changes in the number of shares held by those directors as shown on page 20 since 31st December 2004.

EMPLOYMENT REPORT AND POLICIES
Detaiis of the Group's Employment Policies are set out on pages 26 and 27.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The notice of meeting and an explanation of resolutions 9 to 16 to be proposed at the annual general meeting are set out in the
enclosed circular.

SHARE CAPITAL
Detals of shares issued during the year are set out in Note 24 on page 53.

PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES

There was no purchase of shares by the Company during the year. At 37st December 2004 the number of shares which may be
purchased under the shareholders’ authority given at the annual general meeting in 2004 was 7.4C0.000 and the number of
shares in issue was 75,201,211.

SHAREHOLDINGS OF 3% OR MORE
The Company received natice of material interests in 3% or more of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at
22nd February 2005 as set out below. So far as is known there is no other notffiable interest of 3% or more in the issued capital.

Ordinary
Shares %
Arnhold and S Bleichroeder Advisers Inc. 6,178,397 8.27
The Capital Group Companies Inc. 4,578,191 6.09
Legal & General Group pic 4,401,456 5.85
Sprucegrove Investment Management Ltd 4,332,883 5.76
NFU Mutuai 2,783,363 3.70

STATEMENT OF THE POLICY AND PRACTICE ON THE PAYMENT OF SUPPLIERS
It is the Group's policy to meet the terms of individual supply contracts and in the UK to make payment to suppliers at the end
of the month following receipt of gocds. In view of this, the Group does not follow any particular prescribed code.

Spirax-Sarce Engineering plc has no trade creditors.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group continues to devote significant resources to the updating and expansion of its range of products in order to
remain at the forefront of its world markets. Expenditure in 2004 on research and development amounted to £5,047,254
(2003: £4,878,000).

MARKET VALUE OF LAND AND BUILDINGS
In the opinicn of the directors, the market value of the land and buildings of the Group exceeds the book value of those assets
at 31st December 2004 by approximately £9.000.000 (2003: £8,000,000).

GROUP CHARITABLE AND POLITICAL DONATIONS
Charitable donations amounted to £47,982 {2003: £49.910). There were no pofitical denations (2003: nil).

AUDITORS
A resolution to re-appeint the auditors, KPMG Audit Plc, will be proposed at the annual gensral meeting.

CAPITAL GAINS TAX
For capital gains tax purposes the market value of the Company's ordinary shares at 31st March 1982 was 140.375p.

COMPANY INFORMATION
Further information cn the Company is available on the Group web site: www.SpiraxSarceEngineering.com

By order of the Board Charlton House, Cirencester Road.
P. A. Smith Secretary Cheltenham,

i 14th March 2005

Spitar-Soreo Enguearing pe 81




COMPLIANCE

Corporate governance has been and remains the responsipility of the whole Board. This statement describes how the Company
applies the principles and complies with the provisions of The Combined Code and Code of Best Practice published in July 2003,
which applied to the Company in respect of the financial year ended December 2004. The Board considers that it was throughout
the year ended December 2004 in compliance with the provisions set out in section 1 of The Combined Code other than the ratio
of executive and non-executive directors as explained below.

The Board assesses on an ongoing basis its practices to ensure continued compliance with the Combined Code and has
allocated responsibility for compliance to appropriate directors or officers. Contact has been made with major sharehoidars to
aliow discussion of the Company’s governance policy and strategy with the Chairman and the Senior independent Director.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND PROCEDURES

The Board currently comiprises the non-executive Chairman, three independent non-executive directors includig a Senior
Indepandent Director and seven executive directors, detalls of whom are set out on pages 18 and 19. The positions of Chairman,
Chief Executive and Senior Independent Director are hefd by separate individuals and there is a ciear division of responsibility
between the Chairman and the Chief Executive. This ratio of executive and non-executive directors has applied for a number of
years and the Board believes that this membership is the appropriate structure for the Company. The Board is responsible for the
Group's business operations and the full executive team of seven directors is present on the Board in order to provide first hand
information and contributions to the running of the business. The executive directors contral the Group's devolved management
structure which requires local management intiative across the Group's global spread of operating companies and the broad
product range and wide customer base. Board membership of the seven executives is key to the overall management of the
Group which employs a flat management structure. This aiso provides the non-executive directors with regular direct access to
the full executive management team. This is a successful mix and appointing a further four non-executive directors would make
the Board very cumbersome and would not ada to the quality of the Board's performance. This structure has been maintained
in refation to the recently announced Board retirements and appointments which are explained in the Chairman’s Statement.

The Board applies an appropriate policy in the recruitment of independent non-executive directors to meet the particular
requirements . of the Board. The non-executive directors have all had senior executive experience and offer independent
judgement on Board matters, The non-executive directors of the Company, including the Chairman, do not participate in any
bonus, share option or share ownership schemes and their appointments are non-pensionabile.

The Board meets formally six times per year to consider strategic developments and to review trading resuits and operaticnal and
business issues. In particular it deals with those matters reserved 1o it for decision. The matters reserved to the Board are posted
on the Group web site: www . SpiraxSarcotngineering.com and are as follows:-

() Management

- Approval of Group strategy and annual plans.
Commiiments relating to the acquisition or dispcsal of any company or business by the Group.

- Material or unusual contracts.
Capital expenditure items in excess of £500,000 or such other limit agreed by the Board. tems over £250,000 but less than
£500.000 are reported to each gquarterly meeting of the Board,

{il) Board Membership and Board Committees
The formal appointment and dismissa! of directors.
Terms of reference and membership of Board committees.

{iiiyCorporate Governance/Accounting

- Approval of actions requiring public documents including circulars to shareholders, related documents and press releases.
Approval of accounting policies or practices, including the Treasury policy.

- Individual borrowings, financial instruments, guarantees or provision of equity capital, beyond the authority of the Finance
Committee.
Approval of the content of the Annual Report and Accounts and the interim Statement.

+ Appointment and dismissal of Company Secretary.

+ Through the Audit Commitiee, remuneration of auditors and recommendation for appointment and removal of auditors.

- Dividend policy. interim dividends and proposed final dividends.

- Any matter to be deait with at an AGM or EGM.
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(iv}Other

- Signfficant alterations to existing Group Risk Management policies relating to insurance. environmental and heaith and
safety matters.

»  Changes in principal professicnal advisers.

+  Major changes to pensions and empioyee share schemes operated in the Group.
Prosecution, defence or settlement of any material litigaiion.

All directors recelve detailed progress reports one week prior to each Board mesting.

The non-executive directors met together both with ‘and without the Chairman during the year. Utlising a format created with
the advice of Towers Perrin, the Board again carried out a rigorous board performance evaluation process in accordance with
the Combined Code requirements which confirmed the effective operation of the Board, The Board will ba repeating this
exercise annually.

There are procedures for individual Board members to receive induction and training as appropriate and provision to solicit
independent professional advice at the Company's expense where specific expertise is reguired in the course of exercising their
duties. All directors have access to the Company Secretary, who is responsible for ensuring compliance with appropriate statutes
and reguiations,

The Company continues to provide directors' and officers’ insurance for Board members and the directors of Group subsidiary
companies.

All directors are subject to re-appointment by sharehoiders at the first cpportunity after their appointment and thereafter at
intervals of no more than three years.

SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
During the year Mr. M. Townsend was the Senicr Independent Director,

COMMITTEES

The Board delegates specific responsibility to Board committees, notably the Audit. Nomination and Remuneration Committees
in line with best practice. The terms of reference for these committees are posted on the Group web site:
www.SpiraxSarcoEngineering.com. Additionally the executive directors comprise the Risk Management Commitiee.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprised Messrs. E. Lindh, M. Townsend (Chairman) and W. H. Whiteley. Al members are independent
in accordance with the independence criteria set out in the Combined Code. There were three meetings of the Audit Commities
during the year and alt members attended all meetings, with the exception of Mr. E. Lindh who was unavailable for one meeting.

A summary of the Audit Commitiee's duties and responsibilities is set out on page 25.

{ii} Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprised Messrs. T. B. Fortune (Chairman). E. Lingh, M. J. D. Steel, M. Townsend and
W. H. Whiteley. There were three mestings of the Nomination Committee and ai members attended all meetings.

The Nomination Committee proposes to the Board new appointments for both executive and non-executive directors and
determines on an individual basis the most appropriate method of identifying suitable applicants. The Nomination Committee
arranges for the executive Board members' views 1o be assessed before an appointment decision is made.

(iii)Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprised Messrs. E. Lindh, M. Townsend (Chairman) and W. H. Whiteley. There were four
meetings of the Remuneration Committee and all members attended all meetings. with the exception of Mr. E. Lindh who was
unavailable for one meeting.

The Directors” Remuneration Report presented by the Board of Directors is set out on pages 30 to 37.
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COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS AND SENIOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
Following the annuaf general meeting on 12th May 2005, at the conclusion of which Mr. T. B. Fortune will retire as Chairman and
from the Board, Committee appointments as set out below wilt apply:-

Mr. M. Townsend will succeed Mr. T. B. Fortune as Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Mr, W. H. Whiteley becomes the
Senior independent Director and wilt succeed Mr. M, Townsend as Chairman of the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

Mr. G. Bullock will be a member of the Aucit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees having been appointed with effect from
2nd May 2005,

Mr. E. Lindh remains a member of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.
The Company Secretary continues 10 act as Secretary to the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group conducts regular diatogue with institutional sharghelders and provides such information as is permitted within the
guidslines of the Listing Rules, In particular major shareholders have been approached with a view to discussing the Company's
governance and strategy with the Chairman and Mr. M. Townsend. the Senior Independent Director. As required by major
shargholders, the Senior Independent Director is availlable to listen to thelr views on any areas of concern they may have. To date,
the non-executive directors have not been requested to attend any meetings with them. Reports are made to the Beard of all
meetings with major sharehclders and analysts, including, in particular. triefings after interim and finai results.

The nprefiminary results announcement may be accessed by individual investers on the Group web site,
www.SpiraxSarcoEngineering.com. The Report and Accounts will also be on the web site in due course.

All sharehclders are invited to participate in the annual generai meeting, where the chairmen of the Audit, Nomination and
Remuneration Committees will be available to answer questions. The results of proxy votes are declared at annual generat
meetings after each reselution has been dealt with on a show of hands and this practice will continue at future general meetings.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness, whilst the role of
management is 1o implement Board policies on risk and confrol. The Board reviews the effectiveness of internal controls at least
annually. The reviews cover all matenial contrels, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
systems. The system of internal control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the business
objectives,

In pursuing these objectives, internal controls can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material mis-
statement or loss.

As required by the UK Listing Authority, the Company has complied throughout the year and up to the date of this report. with
the Combined Code provisions on internal controls having established the procedures necessary to Implement the guidance
issued by the Turmbull Committeg and by reporting in accordance with that guidance.

{i) Risk Management

The Group has cperated procedures for considering risks in the normal operations of the Group and with regard to significant
transactions. Strategic and annual planning also encompasses considerations of business risks. The Risk Management
Committee specifically reviews any risks facing the business which could give rise to a significant 1oss.

In November 2003, the Risk Management Committee reviewed the risk register and risk management process first established
in 1999 in the context of the current business structure and operations with the aim of validating the risk register and the general
risk management process and identifying any additional new risks. This exercise conducted with Marsh Ltd revised the risk
register and reviewad risk magnitude and risk likelihood against the current controls and areas for improvement. The Board, on
Marsh's advice, is satisfied that the system of management for significant risks is appropriate for the Company and is properly
executed.

As part of the on-going process, the Group companies have reported on a six monthly basis their position with regard to
implementing the identified countermeasures to address the Group's significant business risks. The six monthly returns are
assessed by the Risk Management Committee. Reports are made to the Board as a whole, by the Chief Executive, for review of
the 1isks and measures taken. Annually the executive directors carry out a reappraisal of the business risks. The Audit Committes
raviews the system of reporting and monitoring and its effectiveness as a whole.
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(i)} Financial
The Finance Committee of the Board considers financing and investment decisions concerning the Group. including the giving of
guarantees and indemnities, and monitors policy and control mechanisms for managing treasury risk within the limits laid down
by the Board.

Financial reporting systems include comprehensive annual plans approved by the Board and monthly reporting of actuat results
with appropriate comparisons against plan and previous year's results, Forecast operating results for the year are regularly
updated. Capital investment is subject to approval under a clear poficy. This includes annual plans, appropriate authorisation,
detalled investment appraisal and post-investment review and due diligence requirements where businesses are being acquired.

(iii} Operational

All subsidiaries of the Group are reqguired to complete self-certification questionnaires regarding compliance with the policies,
procedures and minimum requirements for an effective system of internal control. Self certification is given by both the general
manager and the finance manager of the operation.

(v} Audit Committee

The Audit Commitiee has met to consider the appropriateness and effectivenass of the Group's internai controls, poticies and
procedures and the ocutcome of the external audit for the year. Its meetings are normally attended by the Director - Finance and
the external auditors. There is provision for the Committee to confer with the auditors without the attendance of executive
directars. The Audit Cormmittee reviews the independence of the external auditors on an annual basis. The Committee considers
in detail reports prepared by the auditors in relation to the interim and final accounts and accounting practices and developments.
it also considers reports and explanations provided by the Director - Finance.

The Board has approved terms of reference for the Audit Committee meeting the requirements of the Comined Code. The Audit
Committee’s responsibiliies include:

monitoring the integrity of the financial statements and in particular reviewing the Company's internal controls and risk
management framework;

+ reviewing the scope and results of the auditors’ work. their independence and objectivity and audit fee, including the
requirement for an internal audit function;

reviewing the accounting policies and practices of the Company and at the end of the annual audit cycle, to assess the
effectiveness of the audit process.

{v) Non-Audit Services

A policy on non-audit services provided by the auditors in line with professional practice has been established and approved by
the Audit Committee. The external auditor has undertaken non-audit work (essentially in regard tc taxation and acquisition due
diigence) and the fees paid by the Company for it are set out in Note 7 to the accounts on page 47. The scope and extent of
non-audit work undertaken by the Company's auditors is carefully controlled in line with the written terms provided by the
Company to the auditors with the objective of avoiding impact on their independence and obiectivity. Particularly the auditcrs are
prohibited from providing services in relation to valuations, recruitment, dispute resolution and accounting assistance. The Audit
Committee monitors the scope of the auditars’ work.

(vi} Whistle Blowing
If any employee in the Group has reasonable grounds for believing that the Business Code/Management Code is being breached
by any person or group of people and does not fes! able to voice the matter with fis or her manager, he or she is abie to contact
directly the Company Secretary in Cheltenham and provide full details. The Company Secretary wil ensure that (a) the
circumstances are properly investigated and (b) the employment of the person contacting the Company Secretary will be
protected appropriately.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board assessed the requirement for an internal audit function and concluded that the current arrangements, which do not
require such a function, remain satisfactory.

GOING CONCERN :
After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in

operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the
accounts.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The Statement of Directors' Responsibilities is set cut on page 38.
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For some years the Board has been reporting on Corporate Social Responsibility {"CSR™) which embraces a wide range of issues
and in particular focuses on social, ethical and environmental ("SEE") matters. The Board has continued to embrace and apply
the general CSR principles in conducting its business in a socially acceptable way with due regard 1o the relationship of the
Company to its employees, customers, investors, suppliers and scciety generally.

This report follows the practice in recent years of illustrating the Board's commitment to meeting the requirements laid down by
the ABI and the reporting procedures and actions taken within the Group in this connection, This year the Group has developad
further its awareness of CSR issues and has made improvements, particularly in the areas of heafth and safety.

The Board achieves compliance with the principles of CSR by the management of the risks concerned. The Board seeks 1o
achieve such management within the normal operations of the Group such that the necessary policies, systems and procedures
are embedded in Group practice. The imporiance of invoivement of employees and suppliers in meeting the standards required
by the Board is inherent in our business operations in the provision of products and services to our customers. Meeting the
standards required in the operation of our business as it affects communities and customers is aiso a specific objective reflectad
in our annual plans and strategic planning.

The Group's operations are carried out under the Group's long starding Business Code. A copy of this is posted on the Group
web site: www.SpiraxSarcoEngineering.com. This Code formalised poiicies followed over many years by the Group. The main
areas are as follows:-

compifance with all applicable faws and regulations
operation of the internal controls established by the Group
+having proper regard for all stakeholders in the business
outiawing of bribes
+ commitment to fair treatment of all employees
recognition of all health, safety and environmental matters,

The standards required in the practical management of the Group are set out in a separate Management Code. which is an
internal practical document issued by the Chief Executive with which general managers and the finance managers in each
subsidiary confirm compliance for each year.

The Group also recognises that the achievement of good quality products and services, the maintenance of health and safety,
and the achievement of good environmental practices, are an integral part of running the business and require consideration as
part of the day to day operations of the Group and are reflected in the Group's performance.

The responsibility heid by Board members for the entirety of the Group's operations, inciuding the implementation of its policies,
enables the Group's Business Code and Group policies to be applied on a consistent basis. The Group's decentralised structure
provides for detailed local associate management of SEE matiers by the general manager in each subsidiary, who reports to and
is monitored by an appropriate executive director. These reporting procedures within the Group enable the executive directors,
who have direct responsibility for implementing policy. to monitor, report and take any appeopriate action. SEE training is part of
the training provided for newly appcinted diractors appropriate to their experience, knowledge and previous training.

In the risk management process explained in paragraph {) of Internal Controls, see page 24, the risks involved in not achieving
appropriate SEE standards continue to be assessed and any significant risk is monitored by the Board following half yearly reporis
from ali Group companies.

The Group considers and applies appropriate policies through the Group's Business Code to the following areas:-

{i) Employee Rights

The Group supports and applies the principles of Human Rights in its operations including equal opportunities for employees
regardless of sex. race, religion, age or disability. Board members satisfy themselves that the terms of employment in subsidiaries
worldwide are appropriate. The Group has a policy of non-discrimination and does not tolerate harassment in any form. The
recruitment procedures throughout the Group avoid empioyment of underage staff. Care has been taken to provide for a cuiture
of openness and honesty. Channels of communication appropriate to the local operation have been established to allow
employees to voice their views and concerns. The Group encourages development of employee skills through a policy of reward
and recognition. Recognition is given to individual employees’ needs and requirements throughout the Group and, where
possible, flexible working arrangements are considered where the circumstances are justified.

3
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The Group operates personnel policies and communication structures designed to mest the needs of its subsidiaries and
employees around the world. The Group’s management philosophy recognises employees as its most important asset.
Employees are encouraged to apply their skills, knowledge and energy. Employees have the opportunity to comment on matters
of concern to them through established communication channels. A summary of the Group's annual accounts is made available
10 its employees. The Group's newsletter, with a Foreword from the Chief Executive, is distributed to all associate companies each
month and is made available to employees. individual subsidiaries have either a local newsletter or a regular communication
informing employees on the progress of their company. The Group encolrages the growth of employee share ownership.

(ii} Community involvement

The Group has a Charitabie Trust which donates to registerad charities and additional donations are made to appropriate requests
for support from bodies which are not registered charities both in the UK and in the overseas operating subsidiaries. In the [atter
case the decision to donate is made by the local general manager. in total the Group donates approximately £50,000 per annum
10 registered charities and other good causes.

The operating companies in the Group are encouraged to provide support to lecal communities through company donaticns,
employee organised charitable activities, donation of equipment no longer reguired and through provision of information. By way
of example, Spirax Sarco Ind. e com. Ltda in Brazil contributed to the costs of refurbishment of a local police station and continues
to give support on an ongoing basis.

Another example applies in India where with our partners the local company continues to support a hospital it established many
years ago making provision for both company employees and the local community. Both benefit from an established welfare
orogramme based in company provided premises supporting community initiatives, particUlarly for women.

(iii) Supplier Relations
The Company policy is to use suppliers of goods and services which maintain appropriate standards in their operations. For
axample our Braziiian subsidiary is in the process of implementing SABC00 Standards on Social Accountability.

{iv) Product Stewardship

Information and support is given through appropriate technical advice to provide a solition to customers' needs with installation
and after sales service being integral to the Group’s business. The proper application of preducts and environmental and safety
considerations are dealt with in detail in the technical lterature made freely available by the Group.

(v} Corruption

The Company’s policy outlaws corruption ar anti-competitive practices. In additon to provisions within service contracts geeral
managers, who head Group subsidiaries, are required 1o certify personally that afl laws and regulations have been met in their
territory.

{vi) Health and Safety

- The Company has a clear attitude to health and safety, which is that each operation wil maintain a healthy and safe
envircnment. In the first instance the general manager of each company has the responsibility for ensuring that this is effectively
managed at the jocai tevel. Each major manufacturing site has its own Health and Safety Committes which is advised by a
safety officer.

»  The general managers repoit in a standard form the health and safety record of each subsidiary to the responsible executive
director in an exercise co-ordinated and monitored by the Director - Supply. The Director - Supply is responsible for overseaing
ali health and safety matters in each of the Group's subsidiaries. A separate Safety Audit Committee composed of UK based
directors and senior managers meets every six months to verify the performance of the UK operating companies on heafth
and safety and environmental issues,

The Group ensures that the necessary resources are avallable for health and safety training and companies within the Group
seek as necessary professional advice regarding the implementation of safety programmes. For example, at Spirax Sarco UK
an established training pregramme applies t¢ new shop floor employees and is provided as a refresher to all shop floor
employees every three years.

- Regular reviews are conducted to ensure that employee knowledge of health and safety matters relevant to them is up to date.

- The health and safety record of all subsidiaries, including actions taken and the implementation of Health and Safety
programmes, is reported by the relevant responsible executive directors to the Director - Supply.
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Curing the course of 2003/2004 Spirax Sarce UK have caried out varicus reviews and in particular have extended the
measures for the welfare of employees by:

a) the introduction of Automatic External Defibrillators for use in hearnt attack situations. All first aiders have peen trained in
their use.

b) introducing & policy and commencing the training of all managers in the recognition and prevention of work related stress.

¢) the introduction of a policy with regard to the abuse of alcohol and drugs and trained managers and first aiders in the
recognition of the symptoms of abuse.

Spirax Sarco, Inc in the USA has recently introduced a programme of increased safety awareness amongst its employees and
it has recorded a period of 639 consecutive days without days lost to work-related accidents (over 30 days had been lost
during 2002). The initiatives have also improved the company's performance in the area of OSHA recordable accidents with
an incident rate of 2,74% January 1o September 2004 (the national average being 6.4%).

(vii) Environmental

The Group regularly reviews its written policy statement and performance with regard to environmental matters 10 ensure
compliance with good practice and statutory regulations in all its operations and to meet corporate objectives. The Group
operates its businesses with a proper concern for their impact on the environment generally and. particularly, with concern for the
local communities where the Group's operations are located.

The Group, through its Board of Directors, ensures that its managers and staff are aware of the actions required to consider
environmentat factors and meet requlations in each of the Group’s plants and the risks of failing to do so. Managers are required
to take envirormernital considerations into account in ruaning the business, for example in its energy efficiency, its use of
appropriate materials and the design and manufacture of its products generally and in the investment in new equipment, new
processes and new buildings and services.

There is a detailed procedure which lays down responsibility for ensuring that the Group's policy is carried out. Employees are
also expected in their daity job to be aware of environmental considerations and draw to the attention of management any matters
of possible concern.

* Implementation
The Directer - Supply has specific environmental responsidility in relation to the Group's operations and their impact on the
environment. The Group's objective is to comply with environmental laws and good practice and where non-compliance is
identified to have management systems in place to ensure that this is rectified within an appropriate timeframe. The
environmental policy set out above is circulated 1o management and to alt employees.

General managers of operating companies within the Group are responsible for local compliance with the Group's policy and
with local legislation. A manager within each operating company is nominated to ensure compliance. Agreed actions are
implementad by the operating company overseen by the relevant executive director for that division.

* Review
The Group also operates a regutar system of review, under which every operating company reports on environmental issues
and compliance with focal legislation. Following a prescribed approach reguiar reviews of the Group's faciliies worldwide are
conducted. Following a review the implementation of recommendations, if any, is monitored at Group level. The general
manager wili report through the executive director on any issues identified as is appropriaie in the circumstances.

If recommendations are made then in the first instance the general manager of each company has the responsibility for
ensuring that they are effectively considered and impiemented where appropriate at the local level.

Where environmental upgrades are made to plant and machinery in any jurisdiction, consicieration is given to implementation
of such upgrades across the Group's facilities worldwide,

* Audit Process
In the past the Group has utilised external environmental consultants to audit a number of manufacturing facilities and has, as
a result, established an internal environmental audit process under which a senior manager assesses the environmental
position in each of the major manufacturing units and reports to the local management, This process is overseen by the
relevant executive director who informs the Director - Supply appropriately and is distinct from the process identified above.
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Results

As a result of these processes there have been improvements in the use of solvents, chemicals and fluxes all of which have
contributed to a cleaner operating environment which together with noise atteruation have benefited both employees and local
residents. In particular, Spirax Sarco S.A.S. in France has introduced a new internal audit system one result of which is the
impiementation of a new automated finishing process which has led to greater efiiciency including an increase in productivity
by 50%, a major reduction in water consumption and an overall improvement in working conditions.

Environmental Benefits from the use of Group Products

The use by customers of Group products has a significant environmental benefit which outweighs the environmental issues
associated with the production of the products. Certainly the environmental impact arising from the manufacture of the
Group's range of steam system products is significantly less than the energy saving benefits enjoyed by customers in the
application of those products. The name Spirax Sarco is synonymous with steam and its efficient use worldwide. The majority
of sales are the result of helping customers to improve the efficiency of their plant and processes, reduca energy consumption
and emissions and meet local safety regulations, The Group's technical advice on the application of its products and in relation
to steam systems, which is freely given to customers, is the key to maximising the benefit of the products we supply. There
are numerous individual examples of benefits enjoyed by customers which include improved overall boiler efficiency, improved
energy efficiency of process plant and reduced consumption of water, water treatment chemicals and lower production
of effitient.

Many applications for Watson-Marlow Bredel peristaltic pumps are those where environmenta! improvement is the main aim.

They are particularly suited to applications like waste water treatment where difficult fluids have 10 be handied safely
and reliably.
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the directors’
remuneration report

The Board presents the following report on directors’ remuneration and the work and respensibilties of the Remuneration
Committee.

THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
This Committee has been established for many years and operates under terms of reference agreed by the Board and which can
be found on the Group web site: www.SpiraxSarcoEngineering.com.

The Committee members are Messrs. E. Lindh, M. Townsend (Chairman) and W. H. Whiteley. each of whom is an independent
non-executive director.

The Committes is responsible for determining, on behalf of the Board. the Company's remungration policy and for determining
the employment conditions and remuneration packages of individual executive directors. The Committee alsc administers and
determines the grant of options under the Group's share option schemes for executive directors and other senior employees and,
subject to its adoption at the 2005 annual general meeting, will administer and determine grants of awards under the proposed
Performance Share Plan referred 1o below.

The Comimittee obtains independent professional advice from Towers Perrin to ensure that the Company's remungration policy
is appropriate and competitive. Towers Perrin was appointed by the Committes and has not provided other services to the
Company during the year. Mr. T. B. Fortune, the Company Chairman, and Mr. M. J. D. Steef, the Chief Executive, attend meetings
at the invitation of the Committee to provide information requested by it. However, they do not participate in any discussions
involving their own remuneration. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

The Company has throughout the year complied with the provisions of The Combined Code and Code of Best Practice published
in July 2003 with regard to directors’ remuneration. The Committee has given full consideration to the Combined Code in
establishing the remuneration policy and packages for directors.

POLICY ON EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The Company's policy is to reward directors competitively and on the broad principle that their remuneration should be
comparable with remuneration in other similar public companies. The total remuneration package is appropriate and necessary
to attract, retain and motivate directors of the calibre required to take the Company forward.

In order to align the interests of directers and shareholders, the Committee has structured the total remuneration package to
provide a material performance-related element.

The structure of the directors' remuneration package has been established subject to appropriate modifications for many years
and has regard 1o pay and conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The remuneration package comprises:-

Basic Salary
The Committee obtains independent professional advice from Towers Perrin using publishad information for comparable public

companies. Salaries are reviewed annually on st January taking inte account the experience, responsibiity and performance of
the individual.

-Annual Bonus
" The Company operates an annual bonus scheme for executive directors. The bonus is paid as a percentage of salary. This
percentage is the sum of:-

(i) one third of the percentage increase in pre-tax profit for the year over the average pre-tax profit for the previous three years;

{ii] two thirds of the percentage increase in earnings per share for the year over the average earnings per share for the previous
three years;

{ii) cash generation (expressed as a percentage of profit for the financial year) will carry a maximum of 20% bonus, Where cash
inflow, as determined from the Accounts, is less than 100% of profit, no bonus will be earned under this element; where cash
generated equals or exceeds 160% of profit. the full 20% will accrue with proportionate bonus being earned between 100%
and 160% of profit; and
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{ivyan amount derived from the change in gross margin percentage compared with that for the previous year. Where the gross
margin has deteriorated by 0.5 percentage points or mora, no bonus will be earned under this element: where there has been
an improvement of 1.5 percentage points or mere, the full allocation of 20% will accrue with proportionate honus being earned
betwaen these limits, provided always that the gross margin percentage is above a reguired minimum.

There is & contractual maximum bonus payment equal to basic salary. The bonus forms an integral and regular part of the
executive directors' remuneration and elements §) and (i} are pensionable. Elements (i) and (v) are not pensionable.

in 2004, the Committee made a prefiminary review, with assistance from its professional advisers, of the pension arrangements
for executive directors. Following the deferment of the implementation of the new tax regime to April 2006, the Committee
continues to review, with professicnal advice, the pension position of the executive directors including the pensionability of
elements (i) and {i} of the bonus.

The Company's policy on directers’ remuneration and the structure of their remuneration package are kept under review to ensure
the directors’ overall package remains properly competitive and shareholders will be informed of any resulting change.

Options

Spirax-Sarco Engineering 1992 UK & Global Share Option Schemes

and Spirax-Sarco Engineering Approved & Global Share Option Schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for executive directors. senior executives and management which are administered
by the Committee which determines the grant of options under the schemes usually once per year. These are designed to align
the tonger term interests of executive directors, senior executives and management with those of shareholders by giving an
incentive linked to added shareholder value. The policy is to phase options over the ten year life of the share option schemas.
Options granted to each director from 1995 are subject to a performance condition which is described below,

In accordance with market practice, options granted are normally specified to be exercisable between three and ten years from
the date of grant and, for grants from 1995, only if a specified performance condition is satisfied. In line with the then established
miarket practice, the performance condition for options granted from 19985 up to 2001 requires an increase in earnings per share
of more than 6% greater than the increase in the UK retail prices index over a period of three consecutive years between grant
and exercise. For pptions granted from and including 2002 the performance condition requires an increase in earnings per share
of more than 8% greater than the increase in the UK retail prices index over a peried of three consecutive years between grant
and exercise. The same performance condition applies to each director. The performance condition chosen was considered
appropriate because it ensured increases in the earnings per share were achieved having taken account of UK inflation. In
assessing whether the chosen performance cendition is met the Committee arranges for the auditors to confirm the calculations
made. This method of assessment is considered appropriate to confirm compliance with the condition. The performance
condition requires a comparison with a factor external to the Company, hamely the growth in the UK retail prices index over the
perfcrmance period.

The exercise of options granted before 1995 is not subject to any performance condition being met. This is in line with market
practice at the time of grant of those options.

Detaiis of total share options issued are set out on page 54. The above performance condition applies to other refevant options
granted to ali participants in the share option schemes.

Performance Condition for Share Option Schemes

For grants from 2005, the performance condition will, ardinarily, need 16 ba met over the three year period from the 1st January
prior to the date of grant in order for the option to become exercisable. If the condition is not met at the end of the three year
period, the option will lapse.

Performance Share Plan

As anticipated in the 2003 Annual Repost, the Commitiee has undertaken a review, with assistance from its professional advisers,
of the long term incentive arrangements for executive directars, senior executives and management, and details of the proposed
performance share plan are provided in the circular to shareholders and the notice of the annual general mesting.
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Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc Employee Share Ownership Plan

The executive directors participate in the Employee Share Ownership Plan, as described on pages 35 and 36. Participation in the
Employee Share Ownership Plan is open to all gligible UK employees. No employee’s entitlement under the Employee Share
Ownership Plan is subject to performance conditicns. This is because the aim is to encourage increased shareholding in the
Company by all efigible UK employees.

There are no other iong term incentives provided to directors but a resclution to estabfish a Performance Share Plan wil be
proposed to shareholders at the annual general meeting on 12th May 2005,

Pensions

The executive directors are members of an Inland Revenue approved non-contributory defined benefit pension scheme based on
1/180th of pensionable salary, for each year of pensionable service. The maximum pension is two-thirds of pensionabie salary. The
executive directors accrue pro-rata additional service at a rate which gives a further two and a half years of sarvice at their normal
retirement age of 62'.. Additionally Mr. G. P. Marchand accrues pro-rata additional service at a rate which gives a further nine
years of service at age 60.

The scheme provides lump sum death in service benefit of four times pensionable salary. Spouses' pensions are payable where
death occurs in service or in retirement. No executive director is affected by the Inland Revenue earnings cap and there are no
unapproved pensicn arrangements in respect of directors.

As noted above, in view of the change to the tax regime expected from April 2008, the Committee continues to revisw the
Company's pension arrangements for executive directors on the broad principle that there will be no material increase in cost to
the Company.

Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of non-executive directors is approved by the full Board within the iimits set out in the Company's articles of
association, Their remuneration reffects the amount of time spent on the Company’'s business. The non-executive directors do
not participate in the bonus, share option or share ownership schemes and will not participate in the preposed new Performance
Share Plan. Non-executive directors’ appointments are non-pensionatle.

Service Contracts
The exacutive directors, with the exception of Mr. C. J. Ball. who will retire on 29th April 2005, have service contracts which are

subject to 12 months’ notice. The service contracts provide for a normal retirement age of 52/ for each executive director.

The executive diractors at 14th March 2005 have service contracts as follows:-

Date of Contract Notice Period
M.J.D. Steel 30.12.92 12 months
A.D.H. Black 18.11.98 12 months
N.H. Daws 28.05.03 12 months
G.P. Marchand 301292 12 months
D.J. Meredith 30.12.92 72 months
P.A. Smith 241292 12 months

The non-executive directors, including the Chairman, Mr. T. B. Fortune, who will retire at the conclusion of the annual general
meeting on 12th May 2005, do not have service contracts. They have appointment leiters, normatly for three year periods, and
re-appointment is not automatic.
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POLICY ON SENIOR EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

The Committee determines the phitosophy, principles and policy of remuneration which shall apply to the Group's senior
execLtives. The responsibility for determining the precise patkage to meet local practice and performance lies with the Chief
Executive and the responsible executive director,

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN

The performance graph illustrated shows the
Company's total cumulative shareholder return
for the five year period ended 31st December
2004 compared with the total cumulative
sharehoider return for the FTSE Al-Share
Engineering and Machinery Index. This
comparison is selected as being the most
appropriate  sector for the Company's
operations as the comparison autcmatically
takes account of the impact on the Company's
shares of the market’s view of the engineering

industry generally. 50 r r :
)’ g y 31/12/1999 3111272000 3111272001 3111272002 31/12/2003 31/12/2004

TSR (rebased to 100)

Source: Datastream =

— Spirax Sarco
- === FTSE All-3hare Enginaering and Machinery Index

iINFORMATION SUBJECT TO AUDIT
The auditors are required to report on the information contained in the remaining sections of the Report.

DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

Basic Benefits (1) Annual Total emoluments

Salary/ performance excluding penéion

Fees related 2004 2003

bonus Total Total

£ £ E £ £

T. B. Fortune @ 77.000 407 - 77,407 73.849
M. J. D, Steel 305,000 15,123 104,646 424,769 386,466
C.J. Bal i 176,000 17.381 80,386 253,767 229,830
A.D.H. Black 168,000 15,836 57.647 241,477 220,849
N. H. Daws 139,000 13,074 47,691 198,765 105,731
G. P Marchand 180,000 11,998 61,758 253,756 230,167
D. J. Meredith 195,000 12,730 66,905 274,035 247,960
P A, Smith 139,000 7.254 47,691 193,945 176.851
E. Lindh 24,000 - 24,600 22,000
M. Townsend 33.000 - - 33,000 29,750
W. H. Whiteley @ 24,000 - - 24,000 22,000
1,460,000 83,203 446,718 1,999,921 1,745,553

*  Additionally Mr. P. M. Smith’s 2003 total emoluments excluding pension for 2003 amounted to £82,329. He retired from the Board
on 371st May 2003 and therefore was not a director in 2004,

(1) Benefits arising from employment by the Company, which relate in the main to the provision of a company car.

{2) Non-executive director.

(3) Mr. C. J. Ball's annual bonus of £60,386 includes an amount of £24,552 which Mr. C. J. Ball has waived. The Company is
contributing £24,552 to a defined coniribution executive pension plan for Mr. C. J. Ball set up on independent financial advice.
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Lang Term Incentives
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() Spirax-Sarco Engineering 1992 UK & Global Share Option Schemes and Spirax-Sarco Engineering Global Share Option Scheme

The interests of directors are set out below:-

31.12.03 Granted Exercised 31.12.04 Average Date Expiry
during in year exercise from date
year to price per which
31.12.04 share exercisable
m 2 @) @ (5) {5)
No. No. No. No, pence

M.J.D. Steel A 220,600 35.00C 15.000 240,000 4452 18.09.98 08.04.08
B 30,000 - - 30.000 704.0 24.09.99 16.09.07

250.000 35.000 15,000 270,000
C.J. Ball A 112,500 15,000 97,500 4483 18.09.88 29.09.05
B 30.000 - 30.000 704.0 24.09.99 29.09.05

142,500 15,000 127.500
A.D.H. Black A 107.500 20,000 - 127.500 434.3 16.09.01 25.03.14
D 10.000 - - 10,000 704.0 24.09.99 16.09.07

117,500 20,000 - 137,500
N.H. Daws A - 20,000 - 20.000 541.9 25.03.07 25.03.14
C 49,000 - 2,500 485,500 420.9 18.09.98 14.03.13
D 20,000 - - 20.000 704.0 24.09.89 16.09.07

69,000 20,000 2,500 86.500
G.P. Marchand A 117.500 20,000 - 137.500 454.1 18.09.98 24.12.07
B 30,000 - - 30.000 704.0 24.09.99 16.09.07

147,500 20,600 167,500
D.J. Meredith A 142,500 20.000 15,000 147.500 4647 18.09.98 25.03.14
B 30.000 - - 30.000 704.0 24.09.99 16.09.07

172,500 20,000 15.0C0 177.500
P.A, Smith A 112,500 20,000 132,500 4554 18.09.98 18.08.10
B 20.000 - 20,000 704.0 24.09.99 16.09.07

C 12,500 - 12,500 -

145,000 20,000 12,500 152,500

Notes

(1) Options shown on fines A and B relate to options granted 10 members of the Board, whereas options shiown on iines C

and D relate to options granted to individuats prior to their appointment to the Board.

Options shown on lines A and C are those where the exercise prices are lower than the middle market price of the Company's
ordinary shares on 31st December 2004. Options shown on lines B and D are those where the exercise prices are higher
than the middie market price on that date.

{?) Options were granted to directors during the year over 135,000 ordinary shares at 541.9p per share under the Spirax-Sarco
Engineeting Global Share Option Scheme, which is not approved by the Inland Revenue. Mr. M. J. D. Steel was granted an
option over 35,000 shares and each cf the remaining executive directors, with the exception of Mr. C. J. Ball, were granted

options over 20,000 shares.
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(3) 2004 Option Market 2004 2003

Options exercise price on Gain arising Gain arising
exercised price the date on exercise on exercise
options
exercised
No. pence pence £ £
C.J. Bal 15,000 427.0 587.0 24.000.00
A.D.H. Black - - - - 8.329.02
N. H. Daws - - - 3.235.62
2,500 427.0 588.0 4,025.00 -
G. P. Marchand - - 48,162.90
D. J. Meredith 15,000 427.0 629.5 30.375.00
PA. Smith - - - - 22,604.50
12,500 427.0 635.5 26,062.50
M.J.D. Steal 15,000 427.0 580.0 22.950.00
Aggregate of gains arising on exercise 107,412.50 82,332.04"

*  Additionally Mr. P. M. Smith exercised options in 2003 reafising 2 gain of £9,990.76. He retired from the Board on 31st May
2003 and therefore was not a director in 2C04.

(4) These are the weighted averages of the exercise prices for ordinary shares under option at 31st December 2004.
{5) These are the ranges of dates between which all options which have been aggregated may be exercised.

The market price of the ordinary shares on 31st December 2004 was 647.5p. During the period from 1st January 2004 to
31st December 2004 the ordinary share price ranged between 525p and 647.5p.

The Register of Directors' Interests (which is open to inspection) contains full details of directors’ shareholdings and options to
subscribe.

There have been no changes in the number of share options granted as shown on page 34 since 31st December 2004.

i) Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc Employea Share Ownership Plan

The Company operated an Employee Share Ownership Plan in which all the executive directors are eligible to participate on the
same basis as all other eligibie UK employees. For the Plan period the individual director’s contributions are limited to a maximum
cf £1,500 per annumm under Inland Revenue ruies. The Company provides a matching share for each share purchased under the
Plan by the director which is the same basis for other participating employees.
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rermunera U onire p or t {cortinued;

Interest as Vested Interest as Period of

at 31.12.03 at 31.12.04 qualifying conditions
M.J.D. Steel 1.832 620 2,452 3 years
C.J. Ball 1,832 620 2,452 3 years
A.D.H. Black 1,804 548 2,352 3 years
N.H. Daws 1.832 620 2,452 3 years
G.P. Marchand 1,832 620 2,452 3 years
D.J. Meredith 1.832 620 2,452 3 years
P.A. Smith 1.832 620 2.452 3 years

DIRECTORS’ PENSIONS

The directors are members of defined benefit pension arrangements. The information below is consistent with the presentation
used last year and sets out the disciosures under the Stock Exchange Listing Rules and the 2002 Directors’ Rernuneration Report
Regulations.

Age Accrued Accrued Changein Changein Transfer Transfer Transfer Change in

attained pension pension accrued accrued value of value of value of total
at at at pension pension change in accrued accrued transfer
31.12.04 31.12.03 31.12.04 during during accrued pension at pension at value

the year the year® pension® 31.12,03 31.12.04
Epa £pa £pa £pa £ £ £ £
M.J.D. Steel 58 170,864 192,727 21.863 16,566 256,000 2,268,000 2,883,000 615,000
C.J. Ball 67 118,420 129,872 11,452 7.781 130,000 1,866,000 2,274,000 408,000
AD.H. Black® a7 67.287 51,230 {16.051%} (18.137) {131.000) 455,000 367,000 (88,000}
N.H. Daws 42 41,238 55,356 14,118 12,839 74,000 225,000 318,000 94,000
G.P. Marchand® 59 101,231 115,871 14,740 11,602 189.000 1,479,000 1,885,000 406,000
D.J. Meredith 45 52,232 71,751 9.515 7,590 50,000 397,600 484,000 87.000
PA. Smith 56 72,726 82,168 9,442 7187 95,000 843,000 1,060,000 219.0C0

"

net of deferred pension revaiuation at a rate of 3.1%

{1) Allowing for pension sharing order of £181,407, effective May 2004,
(2) Mr. G. P Marchand's transfer value as at 31st December 2004 has been re-assessed 1o age 62Y-.

No disclosures are given in the current year for Mr. P. M. Smith as he retired in the prior year and has not been a director at any
point during 2004.

The following is additional information relating to directors’ pensions:

(i) Dependant's pensions

On the death of a director in service, a spouse’s pension egual to one-half of the director's pension based on pensionable service
to the date of death is payable. On the death of a director after payment of the pension commences, a spouse’s pension of one-
half of the director’s pension entitlement at the date of death, ignoring commutation and any early retirement actuarial reduction,
is payable: in addition directors' pensions are guaranteed to be paid for five years from retirement.

(i) Early retirement rights
After leaving the service of the Company, a director has the right 1o draw his accrued pension at any time after his 60th birthday
with no reguction.

(iii) Pension increases
Pensions are subject to annual increases in Jine with the annual rise in the RPF subject to a maximum of 5% per annum. The
Trustees and the Company have the discretion to apply & greater increase.

ey
<
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{iv)Other discretionary benefits
There are no discretionary practices which are taken into account in calculating transfer values on leaving service.

{v) Defined contribution executive pension.plan
The defined contribution executive pension plgh for §Mr. C. J. Ballis explained on page 33.

Signed by
T. B. Fortune Chairman
on behalf of the Board

Spirmedaron fngmeering e 37



responsibilities
Company faw requiras the directors 10 prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true anc fair view of the state of

affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit or loss for that period. In preparing those accounts, the directors are
required to:

i Select suitable accounting pelicies and then apply them consistently.

(il Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

fiy State whather applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disciosed and
explained in the accounts.

{iv) Prepare the accounts on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsibte for keeping proper accountng records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements of the Companies
Act 1985, They have general responsibifity for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeqguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other iregularities.
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auditor’s report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SPIRAX-SARCO ENGINEERING PLC

We have audited the accounts on pages 40 to 61. We have also audited the information in the Directors” Remuneration Report
that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body. in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Directors’ Remuneration Report. As described on page 38,
this includes responsibility for preparing the accounts in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and accounting
standards. Our responsikilities, as independent auditors, are established in the United Kingdom by statute, the Auditing Practices
Beard, the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and by our profession’s ethical guidance.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the accounts give a true and fair view and whether the accounts and the part of the
Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, We
also report to you if. in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the accounts, if the Company has not kept proper
accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the Group is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement on page 22 reflects the Company's compliance with the nine provisicns
of the 2003 FRC Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider
whother the Boarg's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report, including the corperate governance statement and the unaudited
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report, and consider whether it is censistent with the audited accounts. We consider the
implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the accounts.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes
examination, on a test hasis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the accounts and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directers in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit sc as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the accounts and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited.

OPINION
In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31st December
2004 and of the profit of the Group for the year then ended; and the accounts and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report
to be audited have peen p[ope‘sy prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

%PM & wt Yl
KPMG Audit Plc London 14th March 2005
Chartered Accountants, Registered Auditor
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group profit and loss account

for the year ended 31st december 2004

2004 2003

notes £000 £000

Turnover 2 325,833 314,087
Operating costs 3 (274,733) (268,337)
Operating profit 5 51,100 45,750
Net interest payable 6 {264) (1,186)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 7 50,836 44,564
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities g {17,154) {15,138
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 33,682 29,426
Minarity irterests - equity {1,135} {(788)
Profit for the financial year attributable to shareholders 70 32,547 28,638
Dividends 11 (16,102) {15,028)
Retained profit for the financial year 25 16,445 13,610
Earnings per share (basic} 12 43.4p 38.5p
Earnings per share (diluted) 12 43.0p 38.2p
Dividends per share 11 21.4p 20.p

All amounts relate to continuing operations.
The notes on pages 44 to 61 form an integral part of the accounts.

The historical cost profit is not materially different from the reported profit for 2003 or 2004.
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at 315t decemibsy 2004

THE GROUP PARENT COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
notes £000 £000 £000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 13 11,713 11,123 -
Tangible assets 14 89,094 88,089 - -
Investments 15 - - 58,083 55,608
100,807 99,212 58,083 55,698
Current assets
Stocks 16 59,756 60,695 - -
Debtors 17 100,576 90,515 23,832 19,988
Cash deposits and short-term investments 8 45,500 38.197 28,042 20.000
Cash at bank and in hand 4,886 4,977 - 1,060
210,718 194,384 51,874 41,048
Creditors
Amounts falling due within one year 19 {75,948) (86,727) {15,095) (11.274)
Net current assets 134,770 107,657 36,779 29,774
Total assets less current liabilities 235,577 206,869 94,862 85,472
Creditors
Amounts falling due after
more than one year 20 {(34,657) {25,376) {298) @47
Provisions for liabilities and charges 22 {18,907) {17.677) -
Net assets 23 182,013 163,816 94,564 84,531
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 24 18,800 18,690 18,800 18,690
Share premium account 25 38,024 35,996 38,024 35,996
Revaluation reserve 25 4,307 4,350 - -
Capital redemption reserve 25 1,832 1.832 1,832 1.832
Profit and loss account 25 115,078 99,782 35,908 28.013
Shareholders’ funds - equity 178,041 160,650 94,564 84.531
Minority interests - equity 3,972 3,165 -
182,013 163,816 94,564 84,531

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Birectors on 14th March 2005 and signed on its behalf by:

Directors
M.1.D. Steel D.J. Meredith

INAR R AN W S
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2004 2003

£000 £000

Profit for the financial year attributabie to shareholders 32,547 28,638
Currency translation differences on foreign currency

net investments (1,192) (1.022)

Total recognised gains and losses relating to the year 31,355 21,616

reconciiiations of movement in
shareholders’ funds

» ey o s f Ty o] o Fou o Y
for the year ended 3ist december 2004

THE GROUP PARENT COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000
Sharehalders’ funds at 1st January 160,650 146,331 84,531 78,554
Profit for the financial year 32,547 28,638 23,997 19,274
Dividends {16,702) (15,028) (16,102) (15,028)
Net proceeds of issue of shares 2,138 1,731 2,138 1,731
Currency transiation differences (1,192} (1,022 -
Shareholders’ funds at 31st December 178,041 160,650 94,564 84,531
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group cas sh flow statement

. v e o T SN S T P
for the yedd andend 318 deceyniber P004

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO OPERATING CASH FLOW

2004 2003
notes £000 £000
Operating profit 51,100 45,750
Depreciation and amortisation charges 13,302 13,824
Decrease in stocks 342 {2,558)
Increase in debtors {9,094) {1.677)
Increase in creditors and provisions 7,562 {1.913)
Cash inflow from operating activities 63,212 53,426
GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash inflow from operating activities 63,212 53,426
Returns on investments and servicing of firance 29 (694) {1,483)
Taxation {16,780) (16,269}
Capital expenditure 29 (14,134) (11.912)
Acquisiticns and disposals 29 (803) (1,909)
Equity dividends paid {15,289) (14,517)
Cash inflow before use of liquid resources and financing 15,512 7.326
Management of liquid resources 29 {7,745) 6.012)
7,767 1,314
Financing - Issue of ordinary share capital 29 2,138 1,731
Decrease in debt 29 {2,677) (8,759
{(539) (7.028)
Increase in cash in the period 30 7,228 (5.714)
RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET CASH (Note 30)
Increase in cash in the period 7,228 (5,714)
Cash outflow from decrease in debt 2,677 8,759
Cash outflow from increase in liquid resources 7,745 6,012
Decrease in net debt resutting from cash flows 17,650 9,057
Translation difference (420) (748)
Decrease in net debt in the period 17,230 8.309
Net debt at 1st January (14,357) (22,666)
Net cash/(debt) at 31st December 2,873 (14.357)
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention, supplemented by the revaluation of certain assets
in prior years, and in accordance with applicable accounting standards. The following principal accounting policies have been
applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in reiation to the Group’s accounts.

Basis of consolidation

The Group accounts include the accounts of the company and its subsidiary undertakings made up to 31st December 2004,
Uniess otherwise stated, the acquisition method of accounting has been adopted. Under this methed, the results of subsidiary
undertakings acquired or disposed of in the year are incfluded in the consclidated profit and loss account from the date of
acquisition or up to the date of disposal.

Under section 230(4) of the Companies Act 1985 the company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss
account.

Goodwill

Purchased goodwill arising on censolidation in respect of acquisitions before 1st January 1998, when FRS 10 - Goodwill and
Intangiole Assets was adopted. was wiitten off to reserves in the year of acquisition. When a subsequent disposal occurs any
related goodwill previously written off to reserves is written back through the profit and loss account as part of the profit or loss
on disposal.

Purchased goodwill fepresenting the excess of the fair vaiue of the consideration given and associated costs over the fair vaiue
of the separable net assats acquired) arising on consolidation in respect of acquisitions since 1st January 1998 is capitalised.
Positive goodwill is amortised to nil by equal annual instaiments over its estimated useful life, normally 20 years, Should the valug
of this goodwill become recognised as impaired, an impairment charge wouid be made against operating profit.

On the subsequent disposal or termination of a business acquired since 1st January 1998, the profit or loss on disposal or
termination is calculated after charging the unamortised amount of any refated goodwill.

In the company’s financial statements investment in subsidiary undertakings is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Turnover
Jurnover comprises net sales to external customers,

Turnover is recorded when the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the purchaser.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calcutated on cost or valuation on a straight fine basis at rates which write down the value of the assets to their
residual values over thelr estimated useful lives. The principal rates are as follows:

Freehold land nil  Office equipment 12,5 -20%
Freehcld buildings 1.5%  Moctor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 10-12.5%  Toolng and patterns 10%

Office furniture and fittings  10%

Leasehold properties are amortised over the life of the lease.

Stocks

Stocks and work in progress are vaiued at the lower of cost, including overheads where appropriate, and estimated net
realisable value.

Cash and liquid resources

Cash, for the purpose of the cash flow statement, comprises cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand, less overdrafis
payable on demand. Liguid resources are current asset investments which are disposable without curtailing or disrupting the
business and are either readily convertible into known amounts of cash at or close to their camrying values of traded in an active
market.

Research and development expenditure
Research and development expenditure is charged against profits as incurred.
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1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes into accouit taxation deferred because of timing differences
between the treatment of cartain items for taxation and accounting purposes.

Deferred tax is recognised, without discounting, in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of certain items for
taxation and accounting purposes which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as otherwise required
by FRS 19 - Deferred Tax.

Foreign currency transiation
Foreign currency assets and labilities are translated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at 31st December. Trading results of
overseas subsidiary undertakings have been translated into sterling at average rates of exchange ruling during the year.

Differences arising from the changes in rates of exchange are treated as part of the trading profit where they relate to items of a
trading nature. Exchange differences arising from the retranslation of the opening net investment in overseas subsidiary
undertakings, borrowings to hedge those net nvestments and between the profits for the year translated at average and closing
rates, are disclosed as movements on reserves.

Leases

Where the company enters into a lease which entails taking substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset, the
lease is treated as a finance lease.

Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and the outstanding future lease obligations are shown in creditors.
Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the period of the lease.

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

Pension schemes are operated by the Company and subsidiary undertakings which employ the majority of Group employees.
Contributions to the schemes are charged to the consolidated profit and loss account such that the cost is spread over the
estimated working lives of employees of the Group. The Group has adopted the transitional requirements of FRS 17 - Retirement
Benefits as reported in note 28.

The costs of providing post-retirement benefits other than pensions, principally heaithcare, are charged to the profit and loss
account cn a consistent basis over the average setvice lives of empleyees. Such costs are assessed in accordance with the
advice of independent qualified actuaries.

2 TURNOVER
The anaiysis of turnover by reference to the geographical location of customers is as fallows;
2004 2003
£000 £OCO
United Kingdom 39,922 39,215
Continental Europe 121,164 117,390
The Americas 84,568 84,207
Asia. Australasia and Africa 80,179 73.275
325,833 314,087

The analysis of turnover by reference to the geographical location of the Group’s operations is as follows:

2004 2003

£000 £000

United Kingdom 97,419 92.370
Continental Europe 149,334 146,408
The Americas 88,578 87,962
Asia, Australasia and Africa ‘ 73,161 67,145
408,492 393,885

Intra-group sales (82,659) (79.798)
Sales to third parties 325,833 314,087

There were no discontinued operations in 2004 or 2003,
The Group cperates in one business segment which is the control of fluids.
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notes to the accounts womed

3 OPERATING COSTS

2004 2003
£000 £000
Change ir stocks of finished
goods and work in progress (107 {1,764)
Raw materials and consumables 88,134 84,070
Staff costs (note 4) 119,267 118,968
Depreciation 12,627 13,155
Amortisation of goodwill 675 669
Other operating charges 54,137 53,239
274,723 268,337
4 STAFF COSTS AND NUMBERS
The aggregate payroll costs of persons employed by the Group were as follows:
2004 2003
- £000 £000
Wages and salaries 94,989 94,884
Social security costs 15,605 158,715
Other pension costs 8,673 8,369
119,267 118,968
The average number of persons empioyed by the Group {including directors) during the year was as follows:
Number Number
United Kingdom 1,106 1.098
Qverseas 2,998 2,957
4,104 4,055
5 OPERATING PROFIT
The analysis of operating profit by reference to the geographical location of the Group’s operations is as follows:
2004 2003
£000 £000
Urited Kingdom 8,732 8,021
Continenal Europe 18,866 16,439
The Americas 11,301 10,335
Asia, Australasia and Africa 12,201 10,955
51,100 45,750
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6 NET INTEREST PAYABLE

2004 2003
£000 £000
Interest payabie: Bank loans and overdrafts 1,461 1,653
Other loans 387 644
1,848 2,297
Interest receivable {1,584) {1.117)
264 1.186
7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is shown after charging:
2004 2003
£000 £000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets held under finance leases 176 178
Audit fees (Spirax-Sarco Enginegring plc £104,000 (2003: £100,000)) 721 696
Hire of plant and machinery 286 288
Other operating leases 2,447 2.667
Research and development 5,047 4,878
Share Ownership Plan contributions 445 413

Fees paid to the auditors of the parent company and their associates for services other than statutory audits supplied to the
Company and the rest of the Group worldwide amounted to £501,000 {2003: £313,000), including amounts paid to the auditors
of overseas companies of £225000 (2003: £212,000). Fees were paid in respect of taxation services {£366,000 {(2003:

£239,000)) and further assurance services (£135,000 {2003: £74,000)).

8 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments, share options and pension benefits are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages

301037.
9 TAXATION
2004 2003
£000 £000
Analysis of charge in period
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the period 12,164 10,152
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {148) (137
12,016 10,015
Double taxation relief (8,851) (7.393)
3,165 2.622
Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the period 13,680 12.810
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 62 (360)
13,742 12,450
Total current tax charge 16,907 15,072
Deferred tax 237 66
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 17,154 15,138
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notes 1o the accounts

{continued)

9 TAXATION (continued)
Current tax reconciliation

2004 2003

£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 50,836 44,564
Cument tax at 30% {2003: 30%) 15,251 13.369
Higher tax rates on overseas eamings 1,643 1.883
Non-deductibie expenses, provisions and accruals 797 826
Pensicn prepayment {408) (356)
Accelerated capital aliowances B89 183
Adjustment to tax in respect of previous periods (158) {409}
Other (309) (424)
Total current tax charge (see above) 16,907 15,072

Factors that may affect the future tax charges:

The Group's tax charge in future years is likely to be affected by the proportion of profits arising and the effective tax rates in the various
territories in which the Group operates. No UK tax {after double tax relief for underlying tax} is expected to be payable on the future
remittance of the retained earnings of overseas subsidiaries. No provisicn has been made for deferred tax on property revaluations:
the total amount unprovided is £4571,000 (2003: £448,000) and it is not envisaged that the tax wil become payable in the
foreseeable future.

10 PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
Profit dealt with in the accounts of Spirax-Sarco Engineering pic was £23,997,000 (2003: £19,274,000). Inciudad in this amount
are dividends from subsidiary undertakings of £23.616,000 (2003: £19.457.C00).

11 DIVIDENDS

2004 2003

£000 £000

Interim paid 6.3p (2003 6.0p) per share . 4,747 4,487
Final proposed 15.1p (2003: 14.1p) per share 11,3565 10,541
21.4p {2003: 20.1p) per share 16,102 15,028

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of earnings per share {Dasic) is based on earnings of £32,547,000 {2003: £28,638,000) as shown in the Group profit
and loss account, divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year of 74,937,130 (2003: 74,432,975).
The calculation of earnings per share (difluted) is based on the earnings shown above and the weighted average number of
shares in issue diluted by 781.558 (2003; 521,701) to 75,712,688 {2003: 74.954.676). The dilution is in respect of unexercised
share options.
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13 FIXED ASSETS: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

THE GROUP
Goodwill
£000
Cost:
At st January 2004 13.623
Exchange adjustments 107
13,730
Additions (riote 37) 1177
At 31st December 2004 14,907
Amortisation:
At st January 2004 2,500
Exchange adjustments 7
2,507
Charged in year 687
At 315t December 2004 3,194
Net book value:
Al 371st December 2004 11,713
At 31st December 2003 11,123
14 FIXED ASSETS: TANGIBLE ASSETS
THE GROUP
tand and buildings Fixtures,
fittings,
Short Plant ang tools and
Freehold leasehofid machinery equipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation;
At 1st January 2004 49,878 1,445 81,784 51,984 185,091
Exchange adjustments (n181) (81 (754) {311 (1.307)
49,717 1,364 81,030 51,673 183,784
Additions 1,348 - 9,054 4,608 15010
Disposals (110 27 {(2,084) (895) {3,116)
At 31st December 2004 50,955 1,337 88,000 55,386 195,678
Depreciation:
At 1st January 2004 7.357 296 51,266 38,083 67,002
Exchange adjustments (66) {13} (408} (247) (728)
7.29 283 50.858 37,842 96,274
Charged in year 1,275 34 6,904 4,845 13,058
Disposals (44) (3) (1,857 {844) {2.748)
At 31st December 2004 8,622 314 55,905 41,843 106,584
Net book value:
At 31st December 2004 42,433 1,023 32,095 13,643 89,094
AL 31st December 2003 42,521 1,149 30,518 13,901 88.089
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14 FIXED ASSETS: TANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Freehold land and buildings at cost or valuation on the basis of open market values for existing use comprises:

2004 2003

£000 £000

Valuation 1976 73 76
1986 7,105 7.090

1991 1,841 1,874

Cost 41,936 40,738
50,955 49,878

The historical cost net beok value of freehold land and buildings at 315t December 2004 was £46,540,000. Freehold land of
£7,933,000 is not depreciated.

Included in the above are finance leases with net book valug of £1,801,000 (2003: £1,950,000).

Fixed assets are stated at cost, except that as permitted under the provisions of FRS 15 - Tangible Fixed Assets, on adoption of
that standard in 2000 the then book amounts of revaiued land and buildings were retained. These book vaiues are based on the
previous revaluations shown above and have not subsequently been revaiued.

15 FIXED ASSETS: INVESTMENTS

PARENT COMPANY
Shares in Loans to
subsidiary subsidiary
undertakings undenakings Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost:

At Ist January 2004 46,354 11,380 57.734
Exchange adjustments - 166 166
' 46,354 11.546 57.800
Acquisition 1.558 - 1.558
Loan - 745 745
Repayments - (84) {84)
At 31st December 2004 47,912 12,207 60,119

Amounts written off:

At 1st January 2004 and 31st December 2004 894 1,042 2,036
Net bock value:

At 31st December 2004 46,918 11,165 58,083
At 31st December 2003 45,360 10,338 55,698

Investments are stated at cost less provisions for any impairment in value.

Details relating to subsidiary undertakings are given on the back cover. Except where stated all classes of shares were 100%
owned by the Group at 31st December 2004. The country of incorporation of the principal Group companies is the same as the
country of operation with the exception of companies operating in the United Kingdom which are incorporated in Great Britain.
Eirdata Environmemat Services Ltd. is incorporated in Eire. All are in the fluid control business except Spirax-Sarco Investments Ltd.,
Spirax-Sarco Overseas Lid., Sarco International Corp., Watson-Marlow Bredel Holdings BV, Spirax-Sarco Engineering S.L., Spirax-Sarco
Engineering B.V. and Spirax-Sarce Investments B.V. which are investment holding comparnies.

Spirax-Marshall Limited, in which the Group has a 40% interest. and Spirax-Sarco Mexicana S.A., in which the Group has a 49%
interest, tiave been consolidaied as subsidiaries because the Group has participating interests in them and exercises a dominant
irfluence over them. The dominant influence is on the basis that the operating and financial policies of these companies are set
in accordance with the wishes of the Group and for the Group’s benefit.
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16 STOCKS
THE GROUP
2004 2003
£000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 18,848 20,194
Work in progress 11,672 11,163
Finished goods and goods for resale 29,236 29,338
59,756 60,695
17 DEBTORS
THE GROUP PARENT COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade debtors 78,426 71,064 - -
Armounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 23,431 19,584
Other debtors 12,036 10,570 174 116
Prepayments and accrued income 3,799 3,147 227 267
Taxation recoverable 1,305 1,635 - 27
Deferred tax 5,010 4,099 - -
100,576 90,515 23,832 719,988

Other debtors in the Group balance sheet include prepaid pension costs of £8,485,000 (2003: £7,221,000} chargeabie to the

profit and loss account after more than one year.

18 CASH DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS

Cash deposits and short-term investments in the Group balance sheet comprise investments and money market depoesits of
£45,500,000 (2003: £38,197,000) and £28,042,000 (2003: £20,000,000) in the parent company, all with major banks, all of which

have a maturity of three months or less from inception.

19 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

THE GROUP PARENT COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts
Overdrafts 4,871 12,602 1,092 -
Cther loans 71,799 19,774 . -
Trade creditors 17,830 14,220 -
Bills of exchange payable 988 993 -
Obligations under finance leases (note 217) 396 380 - -
Amount owing to subsidiary undertakings - - 643 89
Corporation tax 1,963 1,587 355 54
Overseas tax 4,935 5,589 - -
Social security 2,704 2,437 - -
Other creditors 9,352 7.696 976 1
Accruals 13,754 10,968 673 609
Proposed dividend 11,356 10,541 11,356 10,547
75,948 86,727 15,095 11,274

Bank loans and overdrafts amounting to £757,000 (2003: £1,000) are secured on fixed assets of certain Group companies.
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20 CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

THE GROUP PARENT COMPANY

2004 2003 2004 2003

£000 £000 £000 £000

Bank and other loans - Repayable between 1 and 2 years 11,371 3,280 - -

- Repayable beiween 2 and 5 years 22,553 20,706 - -

- Repayable in more than 5 years 45 - - -

Obligations under finance leases (note 27) 478 849 - ;

Amount owed 10 subsidiary undertakings - . 298 941

Tax payable 14 - - -
Accruals 196 541 -

34,657 25,376 298 941

The Company together with other Group companies has jointly and severally guaranteed loans granted to subsidiary undertakings

amounting to £43,879,000 at 31st December 2004 (2003: £54,637.000).

21 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

THE GROUP
2004 2003
£000 £000
Aggregate amounts repayable:
Over 5 years 245 282
petween 2 and 5 years 82 183
between 1 and 2 years 151 384
478 849
in 7 year or less 396 380
B74 1,229
22 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES
THE GROUP
Deferred Post Warranty
taxation  retirement  and other
provisions benefits  provisions Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Provisions at 1st January 2004 6.517 10,712 448 17.677
Exchange adjustments (79) 38 - {41)
6.438 10,750 448 17,636
Charge for the year 1.085 1,840 - 2,925
thilised during the year - (1.654) - (1.654)
Provisions at 31st December 2004 7,523 10,936 448 18,907

An analysis of deferred taxation is set out betow.
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22 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES (continued)

THE GROUP
Provided

2004 2003

£000 £000

Accelerated capital allowances 3,575 3.821
Provisions disallowed {3,827) (3.575}
Other timing differences 2,765 2172
2,513 2,418

Defarrad tax liabilties ' 7,523 6,517
Deferred tax asset fnote 77} (5,010) (4,099
2,513 2,418

23 NET ASSETS
The analysis of net assets by reference to the geographical location of the Group's operations is as follows:

THE GROUP
2004 2003
£000 £000
United Kingdom 44,983 47,575
Continental Europe 60,698 60,801
The Americas 36,452 35,868
Asia, Australasia and Africa 4£1,893 38,806
184,026 183,150
Cash at bank and in hand (4,886) (4,977
179,140 178,173
Net cash 2,873 (14.357)
Net assets 182,013 163,876
24 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
THE GROUP PARENT COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000
Ordinary shares of 25p each:
Authorised 120,000,000 30,000 30.000 30,000 30,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid 75,201,211 18,800 18,6380 18,800 18,690

166,209 ordinary shares, having an aggregate nominal value of £41,552. were issued pursuant to the Spirax-Sarco Engineering
pic Employse Share Cwnership Plan on 6th October 2004 for a consideration of £911,158 received by the Company. 18,061
ordinary shares, having an aggregate nominal value of £4,515, were issued pursuant to the Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc
Employee Share Ownership Plan in lieu of dividends of £102,855. 257,000 crdinary shares, having an aggregate nominal value
of £64,250, were issued during the year pursuaht to the Spirax-Sarco Engineering Share Option Schemes for a consideration of
£1,123,116 received by the Company.
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24 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Directors and 107 other senicr employees and former empicyees of the Group have been granted options te purchase 3,019,500
ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal value of £754,875. Options are exercisable as follows:

Number of Price 1o be
shares paid per share
Between 1998 and 2005 190,000 611.0p
Between 1999 and 2006 241,50C 739.0p
Between 20C0 and 2007 225,500 669.0p
Between 2001 and 2008 271,000 420.0p
Between 2002 and 2009 242,500 525.0p
Between 2003 and 2010 328.000 319.2p
Between 2004 and 2011 413,500 397.7p
Between 2005 and 2012 346,000 436.0p
Between 2006 and 2013 411,000 394.5p
Between 2007 and 2014 410,500 541.9p
3,019,500
The performance condition applicable to directors’ share options set out on page 31 also apply to these options.
25 RESERVES
THE GROUP
Share Capital Profit and
premium  Revalugtion  redemption loss
account reserve reserve account Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1st January 2004 35,998 4,350 1.832 99,782 141,960
Effect of exchange rate adjustments - 29 - (1.221) (1,192}
35,996 4,379 1.832 98,561 140,768
Retained profit for the financial year - - 16,445 16,445
Sale of property - (72) - 72 -
Premium on the issue of shares 2,028 - - - 2,028
Balance at 31st December 2004 38,024 4,307 1,832 115,078 159,241

The cumuiative amount of goodwill resulting from acquisitions prior to 1998 (less goodwill on disposatls) deducted from reserves

amounted to £67,322,000 (2003: £67,322,000).

PARENT COMPANY
Balance at 1st January 2004 35,996 1,832 28,013 65,841
Retainad profit for the financial year - 7.895 7.895
Premium on the issue of shares 2,028 - 2,028
Balance at 31st December 2004 38,024 - 1,832 35,908 715,764
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26 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

THE GROUP PARENT COMPANY
2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000
Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided 2,438 1,028 -
27 LEASE OBLIGATIONS
THE GROUP
Buildings Other operating leases
2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000
Rental payments due in 2005 are under current
operating leases terminating in the following years:
2005 498 274 437 271
20086 to 2009 365 608 566 532
2010 onwards 348 299 19 5
1,211 1.181 1,022 808

28 PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The total pension charge for the Group this year was £8,673,000 (2003: £8,369,000) of which £4,033,000 (2003: £4,238,000)
relates to the overseas schemes. £5,266,000 (2003: £5,347,000) of the total pension charge was in respect of defined benefit
schemes and £3,407,000 (2003; £3,022,000) for defined contribution schemes.

The Group operates three defined benefit schemes in the UK and two defined contribution schemes. Two of the defined benefit
schemes were closed 1o new entrants during 2001, the other during 2004, The defined contribution schemes were established
to provide pension benefits to new employees. The cost of the UK defined benefit pension schemes was determined using the
projected unit and attained age methods following the advice of a qualified actuary. The cost of the defined contribution schemes
is equal to the contributions paid.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the UK schemes were carried out at either 31st December 2007 or 5th April 2002. The
valuations show that the market value of the assets was £109,700,000 and was sufficient to cover 98 per cent of the benefits
that had accrued to members, after aliowing for expected future increases in garnings. This shortfali should be eliminated within
the average working lifetime of the employees in the UK.

The most important assumptions used in the valuations for accounting purposes concern the rate of return on investments and
the raies of increases in salary and pensions. it was assumed that investment returns would exceed salary increases by an
average of 2.9 per cent per annum and pension increases by an average of 3.9 per cent per annum.

Included in other debtors in the Group balarce sheet are prepald pensien costs of £8,485,000 (2003: £7,221.000),

In respect of certain overseas schemeas the excess of £10,341,000 (2003: £10,132,000} of the accumuiated pension cost over the
amount funded is provided in the accounts (note 22). Part of this provision refates 1o the unfunded German defined benefit scheme.

The charge for post-retirement benefits other than pensions for the Group in 2004 was £100,000 (2003: £90,000) and related to
health care. Provisions for the benefit obligations at 31st December 2004 amounted to £595,000 {2003; £580,000) and are
included in provisions for post retirement benefits (note 22). The future costs of benefits are assessed in accordance with the
advice of independent qualified actuaries and are based on assumed discount rates of 5.75%.

Financial Reporting Standard 17 disclosures
Whilst the Group continues to account for pension costs in accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24 -
Accounting for Pension Costs, under FRS 17 - Retirement Benefits the following transitional disclosures are required:

The actuarial valuations of the Group’s principal defined benefit schemes were carried out at various dates between 31st

December 2001 and 31st December 2004. The results produced at earlier valuation dates were updated to the 31st December
2004 by independent qualified actuaries.
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28 PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued}
The financial assumptions used at 31st December were:
Assumptions weighted by value of liabilities
% per annum

UK pensions Overseas

pensions

and medical

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Rate of increase in salaries 36 35 3.3 3.z 3.4 34
Rate of increase in pensions 2.6 2.5 2.3 1.8 1.8 18
Discount rate 5.4 5.5 56 5.4 5.8 6.2
Rate of price inflation 26 2.5 2.3 2.2 2.2 22
Medical trend rate 5.0 5.0 5.0

The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which, due
10 the timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice.

Assumptions weighted by market value of assets
% per annum

UK pensions Overseas

pensicns

and medical

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Expecied rate of return on assets {aggregate) 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5 1.8 16
Bonds 50 4.9 5.0 5.4 598 6.0
Equities 8.1 8.2 8.2 85 9.0 9.0
Other 5.9 55 5.9 9 38 2.7

The market value of the schemes’ assets, which are notintended to be realised in the short term and may be subject 1o significant
change before they are realised and the present value of the schemes’ liabilities, which are derived from cash flow projections
over long pericds and thus inherently uncertain, at 31st December 2004 were:

UK pensions Overseas Total

pensions

and medical
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
£0C0 £000 £000 £000 £0C0  £000 £000 £000  EQOO

Total market vaiue in aggregate 124000 110,70C 91,700 74700 14,700 11,900 138100 125400 103,000
Borids 19200 17,800 15900 3800 4,000 3.800 23000 21,800 19700
Equities . : 97,300 86.200 70,700 2,600 8800 7300 106,900 96,000 77,400
Other 7500 6,700 5100 700 900 BOD 8200 7.60C 5900
UK pensions Overseas Total

pensions

and medical

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
£000 £000 £000 £0C0 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000

Total market value of schemes’ assets 124,000 110,700 91,300 14,300 14,700 11,900 138,100 125,400 103,000
Present value of the schemes'’ liabifties  (148,500) (140,000 (124.400) (26.400) (27,500) (27,300) {174.500) (1567.50G) (151,700)

Deficit in the schemes (24,500) (29,300) (33,300} (12.300) (12.800) {15.400) {36,800} {42,100) (48.70Q)
Related deferred tax asset 7.400 8,800 10,000 2,000 2200 3300 9400 11000 13,300
Net pension liability (177000 {20,500) {23.300) (10.300) (10,600} {12.100) {27.400) {31.100) {35.400)

an
<
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28 PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
The movement in deficits in the schemes during the year were;

UK pensions Qverseas Total
pensicns
and medical
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000
Net pension liability at beginning of year (20,500} (23,300} (10,600) (12,100) (31,100) (35,400)
Contributions paid 5500 5300 1,800 1,300 7,400 6,600
Cuirent service cost (5.800) (5,000) (1.000) (900) (8,800) {5,900)
Settlement gain - - 200 200 -
Curtailment gain - - 10C - 100 -
Other finance income/f{charge) 700 - {400) {700) 300 {700
Actuarial gain/{loss) 4,400 3,700 (300) 2,900 4,700 6,600
Adjustment to deferred tax asset (1,400) {1,2000 {2000 (1.100) (1.600) (2,300}
Net pension liability at end of vear (17.100) (20,500} (10,300} (10,600) (27.400) (31,100)
The components for the defined benefit cost for the year ended 371st December 2004 under FRS 17 were:
UK pensions Overscas Total
pensions
and medical
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £000 £QCO £000 £000 £000
Current service cost (5,800) (5,000) (1,000 (900) (5.800) {5,900)
Past service cost - - - - - -
Total charge to operating profit (5.800) (5.000) (1.000} (300) (6.800) {(5.900)
Settlement gain - - 200 200 -
Curtailment gain - - 100 100
Net gain to profit and loss account . - 300 - 300
interest on pension scheme labilities (7.600) (6,300) (1.500) (1.50Q) {91000 (8.400)
Expected retum on assets in the pension scheme 830C 6800 1,100 800 9400 7,700
Net {charge}/credit to other finance income 700 - {400) {700) 300 (700)
Total charge before tax (5.100) (5,000} (1.,100) (1.600) (6200} (5.600)
The amounts 10 be recognised in the Group staterment of total recognised gains and losses (STRGL) were;
UK pensions Overseas Tozal
pensions
and medical
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
(Gain on assets 3.600 10,800 100 1,800 3,700 12,600
Experience gain on liabilities 6,300 1,500 1.100 1,400 7.400 2,900
Loss on change of assumptions {financial and demographic) (5.500) (8,600) (2.000) (300) {7,500} (8,900)
Currency gain . - 500 - 500 -
Total gain/fjoss) recognised in STRGL before adjustment for tax 4,400 3,700 {300y 2800 4100 6,600
The history of experience gains and losses was:
UK pensions Overseas Total
pensions
and medical
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
£000 £000 £000 £000 EOCO  EOCO £000 £000 £000
Gainf{loss) on assets 3,600 10,800 (27,700 1060 1,800 {1.700) 3,700 12,600 (29.400)
% of schemes’ assets at end of year 25% 98% (30.4%) 0.7% 12.3% (14.3%) 2.7% 10.1% (28.5%)
Experience gain/(toss} on liabilities 6,300 1,500 500 1,100 1,400 {1,500) 7,400 2900 {1,000
% of schemes’ liabilities at end of year  4.2% 1.1% 0.4% 4.2% 4.9% (5.5%) 4.2% 1.7%  {0.7%)
Total gain/{loss) recognised in STRGL 4,400 3,700 (26,700} (300) 2,900 (3,600) 4,100 6,600 (30,300
% of schemes' liabilities at end of year  3.0% 2.6% (21.5%) (1.1%) 10.5% (13.2%) 2.3% 3.9% (20.0%)
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28 PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

If the above amounts had been fecognised in the accounts, the Group's net assets and profit and loss account reserve at

31st December 2004 would be as follows:

2004 2003

£000 £000

Net assets {page 41) 182,013 163.816
Unprovided pension liability® (27,400) {(29.900)
Adjusted net assets incfuding pension liability 154,613 133,916
Profit and loss account reserve {page 41) 115,078 99,782
Unprovided pension liability™ (27,400) (29,900
Adjusted profit and loss account reserve 87,678 69,882

* The net pension liability of £27.400,060C (2003: £31.100,0C0) calculated in accordance with FRS 17 compares with the ngt

pension provision currently recorded of £nil {2003: £1,200.000).

29 ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS FOR HEADINGS NETTED IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

THE GROUP
2004 2003
£000 £000
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received 1,584 1,110
Interest paid (1,782) (2.185)
Interest element of finance lease rental payments (64) (106)
Dividends paid by subsidiary undertakings o minority interests (432) 3123
Net cash outflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance (694) (1,493)
Capital expenditure
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {(14,787) (12,577)
Sales of tangible fixed assets 653 659
Net cash outflow for capital expenditure {14,134) (11.912)
Acquisitions and disposals
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings {1,052) (1,909
Net cash and overdrafts acquired with subsidiary 249 ;
Net cash outflow for acquisitions (803) {1,909
Management of liquid resources*
Net cash placed on deposit {7,745) (6,012)
Net cash outflow from management of liquid resources (7,745) 6.012)
Financing
Issue of ordinary share capital 2,138 1,731
Debt due within a year: net decrease in short term borrowings (11,857) 7,119
Debt due beyond a year: net increase in fong term borrowings 9,527 (15,481)
Capital element of finance lease rental payments (347) (397
Decrease in debt {2,677) {8.759)
Net cash outflow from financing (539) {7.028)

* Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc includes as liquid resources term deposits of less than a year.
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30 ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET CASH

st Jan 206% Cash flow Exchange 31st Dec 206(\'}
movement

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cash in hand and at bank 4977 {118) 25 4 BB6

Overdrafts {12.602) 7.344 387 (4,871)
7,228

Debt due within a year {19.714) 11,857 58 (7.799)

Debt due beyond a year (23,986) (9.527) {456) {33,969)

Finance leases {1,2209) 347 8 874)
2,677

Current asset investments 38,197 7.745 (442) 45,500

Total {14,357) 17,650 {420) 2,873

31 PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Firdata Environmental Services Limited

Eire
Book value Accounting Fair
poiicy value

adjustments

£000 £000 £000
Fixed assets 49 - 49
Current assets - Stock 29 . 29
Trade debtors 212 (11 201
Other debtors 34 - 34
Cash 208 - 208
483 (11) 472
Total assets 532 n 521
Current liabilities Trade creditors 50 ; 50
Tax 22 - z22
Other craditors 68 - 68
140 - 140
Totat net assets 392 an 381
Goodwill 1477
Purchase consideration 1,558
Satisfied by Cash paid 446
Deferred consideration 976
Expenses 136
1,558

Analysis of net flow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of purchase of subsidiaries
Cash consideration 246
Expenses 136
Cash acquired (249}
Deferred consideration on Ampe S.rl. and M&M International S.r.l. acquisitions 470
Net cash cutflow 803

The acquisition of 80% of Eirdata Environmenta! Services Limited in Eire from its sharehoiders was completed on 1st October
2004. The acquisition was accounted for by the acquisition method of accounting. Consideration of £446,000 was paid on
cempletion. The book value of trade debtors has been adjusted 1o reflect Spirax Sarco’s accounting policies in order to arrive at
their fair vaiue, ,

The totai profits after tax of the business acquired for its financial year ended 29th February 2004 was £145,000. The total profits
after tax of the business acquired in the seven months in 2004 prior to acquisition on 15t Octeber 2004 was £143,000.
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32 DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group does not enter into significant derivative transactions. The Group's principal financial instrurments comprise bank loans,
guarantesd senior notes, cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial nstruments is to raise finance for
the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial instruments such as trade debtors and trade creditors, which arise
directly from its operations. It is, and has been throughout the period under review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financia instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The
Board reviews and agrees poiicies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. These policies have
remainad fundamentally unchanged since the beginning of 2000,

Interest rate risk
The Group borrows in desired currencies at both fixed and fioating rates of interest as apprepriate to the purposes of the
borrowing depending on which gives best value. At the year-end 15% of the Group’s debts were at fixed rates.

Liquidity risk
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibilty through the use of overdrafts, loans
and finance leases as appropriate.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has operations around the world and therefore iis balance sheet can be affected significantly by movements in the
rate of exchange between steriing and various other currencies particularly the US dollar and euro. The Group seeks to mitigate
the effect of this structural currency expasure by borrowing in these currencies where appropriate while maintaining a low cost of
debt. At 31st December 2004 the percentage of debt 1o net assets, excluding debt, was 50% (2003: 57%) for the eurc and 28%
{2003: 45%} for the US dollar.

The Group alse has transactional currency exposures principally as a result of trading between Group companies. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by an operating unit in currencies other than the unit's functional currency. Net cash
flows between any two curtencies of less than £1m per apnum would not usually be considered sufficiently material to warrant
forward cover. Forward cover is not taken out more thar twelve months in advance or for more than 80% of the forecast exposure.

The disclosures below exclude short-term debtors and creditors.

Interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities
The interest rate profie of the financial liabilities of the Group as at 31st December was as foliows:

Fixed rate Floating rate Financial
financial financial liabilities on
2004 Total liabilities liabilities which no
interast is paid
£000 £000 £000 £000

Euro 29,420 1117 28.303

US dotiar 5,994 4162 1.832
Other 12,099 1,779 10,320 -
47,513 7,058 40,455 -

2003

£0OO £000 £0C0 £000
Eurc 36,639 1.095 35,003 541
US dollar 10,017 6,690 3.327 -
Other 11418 56 11,360 -
58,072 7,841 49,690 541

In respect of fixed rate financial liabilities the interest rate for euro financial liabilities is 4.4% (2003: 4.4%; fixed for 1.5 years (2003:
2.5 years). The interest rate for US dollar financial iiabilities ts 6.7% (2003: 6.7%) fixed for 1.7 years (2003: 2.1 years).

The benchmark rates for the floating rate financial tiabilities are as follows:

Canadian dollar

Japanese yen } LIBOR
US dollar

Euro LIBOR/EURIBOR
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32 DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Interest rate risk profile of financial assets
The interest rate profile of the financial assets of the Group as at 31st December was as follows:

Financial
assets on
Floating rate which no
financial interest is
2004 Totat assets earned
£000 £000 £000
Sterling 28,182 28,042 140
Other 22,204 17.458 4,746
50,386 45,500 4,886

2003
£000 £000 £000
Sterling 21,301 20,166 1,135
Other 21.873 18,031 3,842
- 43,174 38,197 4,977

Financial assets on which ne interest is earned comprise cash at bank and in hand.
Floating rate financial assets comprise cash placed on money market deposit mainly at call and cne month rates.

Currency exposures

As explained above, the Group’s objectives in managing the currency exposures arising from its net investment overseas {in other
words, its structural currency exposuras) are to maintain a low cost of debt while partially hedging against currency depreciation,
Ali gains and losses arising from these structural currency exposures are dealt with in the statement of total recognised gains and
iosses.

Transactional {or non-structural) exposures give rise to net currency gains and losses that are recognised in the profi and loss
account. Such exposures include the monetary assets and monetary fabilities in the Group balance sheet that are not
dencminated in the operating (or ‘functional’) currency of the cperating unit involved, At 31st December the currency exposures
in respect of the eurc was a net menetary asset of £32.000 (2003; £81,000) and in respect of the US doliar a net monstary asset
of £811.000 (2003 £744,000),

Foreign exchange contracts ‘
There were no significant forward exchange contracts outstanding at 37st December 2004.

Maturity of financial liabilities
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31st December was as follows:

2004 2003

£000 £000

In one year or less, or on demand 13,066 32,696
In more than one year but no more than two 11,522 4,204
in more than two years but no more than five 22,635 20,890
In more than five years 290 282
47,513 58,072

Borrowing Facilities _
The Group has various borrowing facilities available to it. The undrawn committed facilities availabie at 31st December in respact
of which afl conditions precedent had been mei at that date were as follows:

2004 2003
£000 £000
Expiring in one year of less 16,079 16,343

Fair values of financial assets and financial labilities

A US doliar loan with a book value of £4,162,000 (2003: £6,690.000) had a fair vaiue at 31st December of £4.271.000
(2003: £7.014,000). Apart from this loan, fair values of financial assets and liabilities at that date were not considered to be
materially different from book values due to their size or the fact that they were at short term rates of interest.
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financial summary 1995 - 2004

1995 1996 1997 1958

£000 £000 EOCO £000
Turnover 251,285 271,980 265,595 249,030
Operating profit * 44,016 48,214 48,574 42,433
Operating profit margin - 17.5% 17.7% 18.3% 17.0%
Profit before taxation * 43,072 47,113 47,715 42,270
Profit before taxation ** 43,072 47,113 47,715 30,641
Profit after taxation 27,230 30,984 31,229 20,140
Dividends 10,361 11.686 12,535 13,116
Net assets 122,524 119,898 128,772 136,196
Earnings per share {basic) * 33.8p 38.0p 38.3p 34.5p
Earnings per share {basic) ** 33.8p 38.0p 38.3p 24.1p
Dividends per share 13.2p 14.8p 15.8p 16.5p
Return on capital employed 37.2% 37.1% 36.5% 30.3%

* before exceptional and non-operating items

** after exceptional and non-operating items

Return on capial employed is based on operating profit before the exceptional and non-cperating items and goodwi
and average net assets excluding net cash/debt.
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1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 EQO0
258,942 278,148 291,942 296,363 314,087 32%.B33
42,721 43,37¢ 40,803 42,674 45,750 21,4409
16.5% 15.6% 14.0% 14.4% 14.6% 15.7%
41,751 41,157 38,025 40,693 44,564 50,838
43,751 40,167 38.641 40,693 44,564 50,838
29,058 27,300 26,625 26,808 29,426 33,882
13,102 13,301 13,752 14,350 15,028 16,302
128,737 138,264 145115 146,293 163,876 182,813
36.1p 37.4p 34.4p 35.3p 38.5p H3 4p
36.1p 35.4p 35.3p 35.3p 38.5p §3.4p
17.3p 18.0p 18.6p 19.3p 20.1p 2%.4p
28.0% 26.2% 23.6% 25.6% 28.3% 31.8%
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united kingdom
Spirax-Sarco Ltd.

Spirax-Sarce Investments Lid,
Spirax-Sarco Qverseas Ld.
Watson-Marlow Ltd,

Eirdata Environmental Services Ltd. (BO%) (Eire]

americas
Argentina

Spirax Sarco S.A.

Brazif

Spirax Sarco Ind. e Corn. Lida.
Canada

Spirax Sarco Canada 10,
Mexico

Spirax-Sarco Mexicana S.A, (43%)
USA,

Spiraix Sarco. inc.

Sarce international, Corp.
watsoen-Marlow, Inc.

international
Australia

Sprax-Sarco Py, Lid,
China

Spirax Sarce Enginaering (China} Ltd.

India

Spirax-Marshalf Lid. (40%)

Japan

Spirax-Sarco ttd. (Branch)
Malaysia

Spirax-Sarco Sdn. Bhd.

New Zealand

Spiax Sarco L.

Singapore

Spirax-Sarco (Private) Ltd.

South Africa

Spirax-Sarco South Africa (Py.) Ltd.
Watson Mariow Bredel S.A. (Pty) tid.
South Korea

Spirax-Sarco {Korea) Ltd, ($7.5%)
Taiwan

Spirax Sarco Co. Lid.

Thailand

Spirax Sarco (Thailand) Ltd.

Spirax Sarco worldwide

continental europe
Austria

Spirax Sarco Ges. mbH
Belgium

Spirax-Sarco NV,
Watson-Mariow N.V.
Czech Republic

Spirax Sarco spol.s r.o.
Denmark

Spirax-3arco Lid, {Branch)
Finland

Spirax Oy

France

Spirax-5arco 5.A.5.
Watscn-Marlow S.A.
Germany

Spirax-Sarce GmbH
Hygromatk Lt. A. Gmbii
Wason-Marlow Gmbt
ftaly

Spirax-Sarco Sl
watsen-Marlow Sl

M&M International S.r.t.
Ampe S.rl.

Netherlands

Bredet Hose Pumps 8.V,
Spirax-Sarco Engineering B.V.
Spirax-Sarco Investments B.v.
Watsen-Marlow Bredel Holdings BV
Watson-Marlow B.V.
Norway

Spirax-Sarco Lid. (Branch)
Poland

Spirax Sarcoe 8p.z .0,
Portugal

Spirax Sarco Equip. Ind. Lda.
Spain

Spirax Sarco S.A. (95.1%)
Spirax-Sarcc Engineering S.L.
M&M Iberica S.L. (67%)
Sweden

Spirax-Sarcc A.B.

WM Alitea A.B.
Switzerland

Spirax-Sarco A.G.

Spirax-Sarco Engineering plc
Charilton House, Cirencester Road
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